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July 1, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to retroactively amend an existing
subgrant with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
(NHCADSV), Concord, NH (Vendor #155510-8001), approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 14, 2023, Item #158 from the Federal Victim of Crime Act Grant
(VOCA), by extending the end date only, from June 30, 2024 to September 30, 2024, for the
purpose of providing services to victims of crime, effective July 1, 2024 upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2024. No additional flinds are involved
in this time extension. 100% Federal Funds

EXPLANATION

This item is retroactive because there were delays in receiving accompanying documents
to the amendment in order to meet a Governor and Executive Council meeting prior to June 30,
2024.

On June 14, 2023, the Governor and Executive Council approved a VOCA subgrant from
the Department of Justice to the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (NHCADSV), in an amount not to exceed $3,924,672 through June 30, 2024. The
Department of Justice requests authorization to extend the end date only of this existing
subgrant, from June 30, 2024 to September 30, 2024. This will allow the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, and its twelve member programs, to
continue services to victims domestic and sexual violence including, but not be limited to,
housing, shelter, crisis services, hotlines, sexual assault support, crisis services, a Trauma
Informed Specialist position, and support for the statewide sexual assault nurse examiners
program.

Telephone 603-271-86S8 • FAX 603-271-2110 • TDD Access: Relay NH 1.800-736-2964
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In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Formella

Attorney General

#4564735



AMENDMENT TO GRANT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO GRANT AGREEMENT (the "Amendment"') Is entered into and
effective as of the Effective Date (defined below) by and between as of the NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ("State") and the NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC & SEXUAL VIOLENCE ("Subrecipient"'). State and Subrecipient are sometimes
referred to herein singularly as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Grant Agreement as approved by the Governor
and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire on June 14, 2023 at Item # 158 (the
"Agreement"'), wherein the State agreed grant, and Subrecipient agreed to accept, certain sums
upon the terms and conditions set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Paragraph 20 of the Agreement, the Parties wish to amend
the terms and conditions of the Agreement as further specified herein;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration exchanged, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby conclusively acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree to amend the
Agreement as follows:

1. Amendment to Block 1.7. Remove the Completion Date set forth in Block 1.7 of
theG-l Form Agreement and replace with, Completion Date: 09/30/2024.

2. Amendments to Exhibit C. Remove the Grant Completion Date of 6/30/2024 as set
forth in Paragraphs 3(a), 3(b) and 4 of Exhibit C to 9/30/2024.

3. Effect of Amendment. Except as provided in this Amendment, the terms and
conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for all purposes.

4. Construction. The recitals set forth at the outset of this Amendment are a part of
this Amendment, as fully as if set forth in their entirety in the body hereof. The captions or
headings in this Amendment are for ease of reference only, and no caption or heading shall affect
in any way the interpretation, meaning, or construction of this Amendment. Capitalized terms that
are not defined within the text of this Amendment shall have the same meanings respectively
ascribed to them in the Agreement.

5. Effective Date. The terms and conditions of this Amendment shall become

effective on the date that it is approved the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire (the "Effective Date").

6. Counterparts; Facsimile and Electronic Signatures. This Amendment may be
executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same Amendment. A facsimile or portable document format
(PDF) signature on this Amendment shall be equivalent to, and have the same force and effect as.



an original signature. In accordance with the New Hampshire Uniform Electronic Transactions
Act, RSA 294-8:1 et seq., the Parties hereby agree that this Amendment may be signed
electronically, including any exhibits, schedules, addenda, or other attachments referenced herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the date
adjacent to their respective signatures set forth below.

June 24, 2024

Authorized Representative: Lyn Scholiett Date
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence

By: (2^iaa. June 25. 2024
Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration Date

Approved by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By. ^ 6/25/2024
Attorney Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certily that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on April 30, I98I. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0006657722
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Tina Smith hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chairperson/Officer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
on May 21.2024 at_whlch a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting

(Date)

VOTED: That Lvn M. Schollett. Executive Director
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter Into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, which may in his/her judgment t>e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 11,2024
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Tina Smith

Title: Chairperson, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20



AfC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

04/23/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poNcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowt>rook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME**"^ Eleanor Spinazzola
(603)293.2791 (603)293-7188

AMRESS' Elea^xirspinazzolaSesinsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC t

INSURERA Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, DBA: NHCADSV

PO Box 353

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B
Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURER 0

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2022 REVISION NUMBER:

LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY IXPPOLICVEPP
TYPE OF INSURANCE

X

POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

PRO-
JECTpaiCY LOC

OTHER:

MAC 5464236 23

(MM/DO/YYYYl

05/15/2024

(MM/DOPTYYY)

05/15/2025

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO Ht-NTkO
PREMISES fEa ocajfTef>Cfll

MEO EXP (Any one p«f>00)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa acdaentl

1.000,000

100,000

5.000

1.000,000

2.000,000

2.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYALTTO

100.000

X

BODILY INJURY (Pw person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

MAC 5464236 23 05/15/2024 05/15/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per accMent)

■PrBPERTTBamaSE
(Per accident)

X UMBRELLA LIA6

EXCESS LIAB X
OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE .1.000.000

UMB8234007-16 05/15/2024 05/15/2025 AGGREGATE 1.000.000

DEO X RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NK)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekjw

STATUTE
OTH
ER

0 N/A WC5-313-604577-014 05/15/2024 05/15/2025 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schadule. may l>e attached If more space la required)

1

New Hampshire Department of Justice

t Granite Place South

Concord. NH 03301

I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELtVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORLZEO REPRESEKTATTVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marlis of ACORD
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158
May 24,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Suhunu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Ju^ce (DOJ) to enter into subgrants, with the subrecipients
listed below, in the amount totaling $4,533,984 from the Federal Victims of Crime Act Grant
(VCX^A), for the purpose of providing direct services to victims of crime effective upon approval
of the Governor and Executive Council or July 1,2023, whichever is later, through June 30,
2024. 100% Federal Funds

Funds are anticipated to be available in the account 02-20-20-201510-5021. Victims of
Crime Act, for Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of flmds in
the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances, within price limitations,
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified as follows:

Class

AcCOQDt Subrecipknt Vendor #

SFY 2024

Amount

085-588546 Department of Gcrrections 202494-B00I $210,000

072-500575 New Hampshire Coalition Againrt Domestic & Sexual Violence 155510-BOOI $3,924,672

072-500575 Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc 156690-B001 $78,502

072-500575 Northern Human Services 177222-8012 $320,810

Total: $4333,984

EXPLANATION

VOCA was enacted by Congress in 1984 and it established the Crime Victims Fund.
Fines paid by offenders of federal crirnes are deposited into this Fund. Money from the Fund is

Tel«pboiM 603-371-8658 • PAX 603-271-8110 • TDD Acoaaw B*l*y NH l-aOO-786-8964



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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then distributed to states for the benefit of victims of crime. DOJ is the receiving agency for
VOCA funds in New Hampshire.

DOJ subgrants these funds to agencies providing direct services to victims of crime.
VOCA requires the funds to agencies providing services in the fields of sexual assault,
domestic violence, traditionally underserved populations, and crimes against children to be
given priority. For many years, DOJ has directed VOCA funds to certain core service
providers. ̂ ch'VOCA subrecipierit is required to report quarterly Performance Measurement
Data (PMT). PMT data include victim de-identified demographic information as well as types
and numbers of services provided.

The Department of Corrections (DOC) funds personnel for their victim services stafT.
The DOC Victim Services Unit responds with sensitivity to the needs of crime victims and their
families by providing them the opportunity for participation in the criminal justice process,
restitution, assistance with applying for victim compensation funding, victim notification,
confidentiality, and victim-initialed Victim Offender Dialogue ̂ OD).

The Court Appointed Special Advocates of NH (CASA) provide court advocacy to
victims of child abuse and neglect. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Scxu^ Violence provides direct advocacy for victims of domestic violence and sexual assault
including subgrants to twelve crisis centers across the state. Northern Human Services provides
mental health treatment and services to victims of crime in the northem part of the state.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Formella

Attpmey General

#4032649



FORM'NUMBER G-1 (veriion 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

1

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Identiification and Definitions.

' ' 1.1. State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
33 Capitol Street. Concord, NH 03301

!  1.3. Grantee Name t
j New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic j
' & Sexual Violence

lA. Grantee Address

100 North Main St

Concord. NH 03301

>  l.S Grantee Phone 4 \
-  (603)224-6893

' 1.6. Account Number .

02-20-20-201510-

5021-072-500575

'  1.7. Completion !
Date 06/30/2024

1
1.8. Grant Limitation ,•$3,924,672 j

,  1.9. Grant OfTicer for State Agency
j , Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number i
(603)271-3658 ,■

'  If GtwIcc is a municipality or \nllage district: "By iignlng this form we certify thit we haye complied wlUi aiiy public J
.meetine!reoulrcmeiilforacceDtanee.of.thI$!erant;.indudioKlf.alOplicableRSA3]:95-b.'!.... 1

1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1
Lyn M. Schollelt, Executive Director

' Grantee Signatu^' 2 '' ] Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3

)
Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

,

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) " 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
(ZOAA. K«W*nC«T.t»*to«(AilmM«tlpn

■  ' 1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Forn^ Substance and Execution) (If G & C approval required)

, By: Assistant Attorney General, On: / / 5/15/23
1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

1

By: .. .. dri: j 1. . . ^

through the Agency identified in blodc I.l (hereinafter referred to as 'Hhe State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as '•the Grantee"), shall 'pcHbnn that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attach^ hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

1 of 30 Subredplent iniUab ^ S



y  ̂RRA.mvPRFn F«(;i!p« as Mhonk'ise ipeeifically pmvided for herein, (he
Grantee ihall perfom the Project in, and with respect to, the Stale of >tow
Hampchiiu 91.

4. BfTECnVE DATE-- CQMRLCTIQM QF.PRQJBCT.
4.1. Tliia Afroenicnt,' end til oblisattoos of •the partJea bereunder, shall become

cfToctive 00 the date oa die datd-'of ipprovel of this Agreement by (he Governor
and CouocQ of Che State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upw 9.3.
signature by the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effoctlvc Date").

41. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, ̂ludtng all repoits 9.4.
required by this Agreement, «b»ii be eompleted in ITS entirety prior to the dse io
block 1.7 (beteioaRer refoied to u *nh6 Compietion Date").'

5. GRANT AMQUyfr-.LJMrrATK^ QN AMQlJbfT:.VQOCHERS: PAYMENT.-.
5.1. Tbe Grant 'Amouni'u'idenliCed and more panicularly described in EXHTBtT.C,

attached hereto. . 9.5.
5.2. The manner of. and siihedule of payment shall be as set forib in EXHIBIT C.
5.3. In accordance with the provisiona set forth in ETQDBIT C, and tooensidcration 10.

of the sBlisfactory performaoce of the Project, as dctcnnined by (he State, and as
limited by subpangraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the Siau shall pay the
Grantee (he Grant AoounL The State shall'withhold fioiD the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagrajdi 5.3 those tttrm required, or
pe^ited. to be withheld pumiast to N.K. RSA 80:7 through 7<.

5.4. The paymcDl by.the Suieof (he Oreni amount shetl be (he only, ead'lhe complete
peytndat to the Graotee fbr all openscs, of wtntcver nsttue, iocuired by the
Graotoo b the peffornance hereof, and shall be the only, and the coi^lete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Prbjoci. The States^! have no liabilities b 11.

'  the Grantee other (ban the Grant Amount ll-l-
5.5. Notwithstanding ahythmg b dm Agreement to (he coainry, and iwtwithstaodbg

unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of aQ payments authorieed, 11.1.1
or actually mede, hereuoder exceed the Cram limkation set forth b block 1.8 of 11.11
these geno-^ provisions. 11.1.3

6. mtO'tJANCE BY GRANTEE WITH RI»Gt^pONS^ b M.1.4
conn^ori with the p^ormance of the Prajdct the Grmtce ̂ 11 conqily with all 111.
statuta, laws regulations, aod orden of federal, state, cotm^, or muntdpal
auihoritia which shall bipiDsc any obligations or (hity upon (he G^ee, bchiding^ 11.2.1
(be acquisition ofany and ell necessary permits sad RSA 31-95-b.
RPrORDS end ACCOU»fr^
Between the Effective Due and the date seven (7) years sRcr the Conplction
Date, otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detafled accounts of til expenses incurred b connection with the Mil
Project, bcludbg, but not limited to, costs of admbistrttion, trinsporutiori,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and servica. Such arcounts
shall be supported by receipts, bvoicea, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years afla the Completion.
Dale, unless otherwise lequirtd by the grant terms'or the Agency, pursuaiit to 111.3
futqmgraph 7.1, at any dme during the Grantee's normal busbcu hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall ooke available to the State all 11.2.4
records pertaming to matten covered by this AgreemeoL The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, exanune, and reproduce such records, end to make audits 12.
of all eontracis, bvotces. materials, payrolls, records ofpcrionnd, data (as that 12.1.
term is herebsRer defined), trtd other bformatran relolbg to all mstten'covoed
by this Agrpement As used b this paragiaph, "GraoieeV bcludcs all persons,
nature! or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under commoo owDcnhtp

8. with, the entity Identified as the Grantee m block IJ of these provisbns
8.1. PERSQhn^

"rhe Grantee shall, at iu own expense, provide aU personnel ttoccssary to, perform 121.
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged m the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and sl^l be prepsly itcased ind'autboriud

81. to perform such Project imdm all sppli^le tows.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, nibgnintee,, 12.3.
or other person, finn or corporstion with whom it is cnpged b a combbed effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contrectual relatkmihip with

8.3. the State, or who is a State offica or employee, deeted or appobted.
The Grant Officer shall be the reprmentaiive of be State hoetmder. b the event
of eny dtspuie hereunder, (be bierpretation of this Agreement by the Grant 12.4.

9. Officer, and hisber decision on any dispute, shall be final.
9.1. nATA -RFTENTION OF PATA; ACCESS

As tuMd m this Agreexnent, the wbtd "data" shall mean all mfonnaiion and things. 13.
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or devdoped'by
reason of. (his Agreement, including, but nor limited to, ah Sludia, rq)0(ta,-fiic3,
formula^ surv^ maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordbss, pictorial
reproducltohs, drewings. aoalytm, graphic representations.

7.

7.1.

71.

computer programs, coirrputer-printouts, nota. letten,- memoranda, paper, i
documenm, all whether finiilwd or unfinibed.'
B^ca ihe ̂ ecOve Date aod ̂  Co'mpletion D^ tho (^^'tball gram
the State, or any person daigniied by-it, unrestricted access to all data
exafflination, duplieatioa, publicatjon, traoslatkin, tale, disposal, or for'any oi
purpose whstioevcr.
No data shall be nitgrei to copyright b the Onimd States or sny other couotiy
anyooe other dum (be State.
On and afta (be Efftetive Date all data, and any property wttkb has been roceh
from (be State or pmchased with ftsds"provided (or-thri piripbsc under i
Agreement, shall be (he propoty of the State; and shall be tthimed Id Ihe Si
upon demand or upiSi'tenninatloa of tfib Agreemait for any reason, wbicbe
sbsll first oceur.

The State, and anyone H shall designate, shall have unrestricted euthcmty
publish, ditf-lw. dirtribuie and otherwise use, b whole or in part, all datai
CONPny^L NA^^ Qtt ACREB^ENT. .NoiwiihftaiMlbg siprthlng
^thB'Agfecnwrit'tblhe coho«r|^aU'6blig8tions' of the State bereunder, bcludi
vritboui limitation, (he coratnusiKe of poymeots bereunder. arc contingeni tq
the availability or contbued apprtrpriaion of fbnda, and b no event shall the Si
be liable fbr any paythenti beromder b eaeesi of such available or tppropria
fbnds. b the even of i reduction or termination of those funds, the Suie d
btve the rlsbi to withhold payxMnt tmtil nich Amds become availsbk, if wa, i
shall have (be right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving
Grantee notice of such termbatkm.

■.FVENTPPDBPAIlLT.REMEDrES

Any one or more of the following acts or omtssiona ofthe Grantee ihall conslil
an eventofdefauit hereunder (bcrebader referred to as "Bveiu of Defsuh"):
FaOure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on lebedule; or

^FaOure to submit any report required bereimder, or '
Failure to mabtab, or pennit access to, ^ records required hcmmder; or
Failure to perform any ofthe other covenants and conditions of this Agreema
Upca the oeeunenceofany Event of Oefiult, (he Stale may lake any one, or rot
or all, of Che following actions:
Give (be Grantee a wrines notice specitybg the Event of Dcfkult and requirb.
to be lemedied within, b the tbse^ of a gmlCT or lesser ipecificatbo of tb
thirty (30) days from the date of (he notice; and if the Event of Defmh b:
timely rcrnediod, tenmnste this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving

< Grantee notice of lermiiutioQ; and
Give the Grantee a writteo notice spcciiybg the Event of Default aod suspend
all pajhneots to bb made under this Agreement and ordering that the portloo of
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Orimtee during the per
from (he date of such iwtice until sixh time as (he.Stale determbei thai
Grantee has cured the Event of Defbilt shall never be paid to the Grantee; aod
Set offagainst any other obfigatioo the State may owe to the OnuitM any damn;
(he State luffen by reason of any Event of De(su]i;'aad
Treat the agreement as breached and pui^ any of its remedies at bw or b equ
or both.

■-TRWyirNAHOW.
b the event of any early laminatioo of this Agreement for any reason other (i
the complbtOQ of the I^jeci, the Grantee shall deliva to the Grant Officer,,
bter than fifteen (-15) days after the date of lermmaiion, a report (bereba
referred to u the 'Terminstioo Report'O derenhbg b detail ^1 Project W.
performed, and (he Grant Amouot euned, to and including the date of tenmnali
b the event of Tenoiration unda pangrephs 10 or 12.4 of these gen«
provisions, the ipprovil of such a Termiostion Repon by the State shall ent
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Graoi imount earned to and mclud
the dale of lombaUoa
b (be evat of Termination under pangraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gen
provisbns, the approval of such a Tenninatioo Report by the State shall b
event relive the Oiaslee from any tnd all Uabtliry fbr damags sustamed
incurred by (he State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligats
bereunder.
NotwithstajMlbg anything b this Agteemeat to Ihe cootraor. either the State
except where notice defkuh has been given to the Gnmtee hercundv, (he Gram
may lemtinale (his Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written aoti

.CONFLICT, np.rNTRRP.ST. No officer, member of employee of the Gram
and no representative, officer or employee of the Sute of New Hampshire ot
(he govembg body of (he locality or loeiiitici in which the Project is to
performed, who exercises any functions or rcsponsibilitiea b the review or
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14.

IS.

16.

approval of theundcnakingnr canymgoulof $uch Projed, (hall ponicipato in 17.2.
any deciiion relating to Ihb AgrcemcM which a/Tccts hia or her penonal interest
or the intercin of any corporatioh, partnenbip. or association in which he ortdte
is directly or iodirtcUy biercsted, nor tfiall be or she have any penonsi or
pecuniary intaiBSt, direct or indireot. in this Agredncnt or the proceeds tbereof.
r.BANTPg'S -REI^TIONJTQ-THE-STAm Jn the pofonunce of this
'Agreement the Giantee, its eopli^^. Bod any (ubeontiactor or subgnnteeof II
(he OrinlM ere in-all respects indcpebdeoi eontraciort, and are neiiber agents
nor employees of (he S(aia Ncitha (be Grantee oor any of its ofDccn,
eni^oyea, agents, members, tuhcontractors or subgrantees, ibaO have authority
to bind (he Sute nor are (bey entitled to any of the benefits, worViKn-i
compensation or emohimeaii piovided by the State to its ernployees.
ASjgifiKMFNT AND SIIHCQNTRACTC. The Grantee (hall oot asstgn, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement 'without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcoatracted or
subgranied by the Grantee other than u set forth in ExhiUl B without the prior
written consent of (he State. 20.
OJnPMNIFICATlON. The Givntee shall defend, indemnify and bold banaless
the State, iu ofTiccrs aitd employees, Ihim and againsl any and all losses sufTcred
by (he State, its eflieerB and eRa>loyees, and any and all claiso, liabilities pr
penalties assened against the State, its ofTiccn and employees, by or oo behalf 21.
of any person, en account of. based on, resulting (rom, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts of omissions of the Ortntae or
lubcontrector.orsubgranloeoroehoagemoftbcCTtntee. Notvnihnindnigthe
foregoing,'nothing'hcrein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which insnuaity is bettby'reserved (o the State.
This covoiani (hail survive the tenninatioo of this agreement. 22.

,mSURAMCE;
The Grtotee shall, at its own espense, bbinin and maioiaio in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee pafonning Ptpjcct work to
otoin and rhamiain in force, both fbr the benefit of the State, the following
insnrTLDce:

Statutory workers' conqremation and exnployea liability fatsarance for all 24.
enqrioyeea engaged in the performance of (be j^jeci, and

17.1.2 General liability insuraoce against all claims of bodily iitjuria, death or pnpaly
damage, in amounts not less (ban 51,000,000 per occurrence'tnd 52,000,000
aggregate for bod lly iqjury or death any one incident, and 5500,000 for pic^erty
darrege in any one Incident; and

17.1.1

The policies described in cubparagrajA 17. i ofthis paregriph shall be the stand)
form employed in the State of New HaoqMhire, Issued by undcrwriten aeccptai
iolheStete.aodsutboiizedtodobusinessinlheSiateofNewHampshire. Gran
shin fttreish to the State, certificBtcs of insuiwtce for all ren^aXs) of iosurai
required under this Agreement no later than tee (10) days prior to the apiret]
dale of each ittsujance policy.
..WAIVER QP.BREACR- No faihire'by (he Stale to enforce any pnvistons ben
''afla'tty''Evehrof Default ihill be deemed a' waiver of its rii^ with regard
that Event, or any subs'equcDi Event. No express wtiya of any Evan of Defa
shall be dremed a %vajver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of wai-
shall be deemed a of the right of the State to enforce escb and all of ■
provtsioQS hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOnCB. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be decmod to ht
been duly delivered or given*at the time of nulling ccnified mail, poxti
prepaid, in a United States Post OfPkc addressed to the parties at (be addres:
Cm above given.
rAMENDMENT.' Thii Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged oi
' by ih instruincnt in wriimgtigned by (he parties hereto and only after approval
such axneDdtDcnt. waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the Si
ofNew Hampsbire, if required or by the signing Slate Agency.■CONSTRUCTION pP.^QREEME>n^ND TEBjjS Agrecmem ahsll
construed in accontaoce with the taw of (he Stats of Hampshire, tmd
binding upos and inures to the benefit of the parties and (heirrmpeetive success'
tod assignees. The ciqnkms and contents of (be "subject" blank ere nsed only
a matter of convouotce, and are not lo be considered.a part of this Agreement
to be used in deteradoing the Intoid of the parties hereto.

-TmRP.PARTIES. The parties hireto do not intetd to bexiefit any.third part
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be aecuted in a numJ
of counloparti, each of which ihail be ddcmod an originil, corstituta thie enl
ftgreeuwiU and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all pr
agrecmnti and understandinp relating bereio.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additioaal or modifyint provisions set forth
Exhibit'A'bmio are incorporMed as part of this sgreemenL
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EXHJBIT-A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence as the Grantee (ifiereinafter referred to
as "Subrecipient**) shall be compliant at all times with the terms^ conditions and specifications detailed
below, which are subject to annual i^iew.

1  The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons haye meaning^]
access to any services provided by this progr^. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may.
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written trwslation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at
www.lep.gov.

2  The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal-or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against.the
Subrecipient oh the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, isex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to'the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your'obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-managemcnt/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded funding fiom this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice F^grams, U.S. Department of Justice.

The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
^  with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which.may include the Omhibus;Crime

Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34.U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C.
§ 11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § I2291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-34): the Education Amendments of1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683,
1685-86); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also
comply with Ex. Order 13279, ̂ ual Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and
Coinmunity Organizations; Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and
Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood
Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4  Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour, ^'en the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate
hourly rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required .
Prior approval requests require additional justification.

5  The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a fohner member of the NH
Department oif Justice, that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed
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EXHTBTTA

to any federal or stale subgrant or monetary.award that the employee directiyimanagcd or
supervised while at the DOJ fof'the life of the subgi^t without the express approval of the
DOJ.

The Subrecipicnt understands that grants are funded for the grant avyard period noted on the
grant award document. No guarfmtee is given of implied of subsequent funding in future
yeju^.

Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false
statements

The conditions of this award arc material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award. By signing
and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts
all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts all such assur^.ces or
certifications as if persondly executed by the authorized recipient official.

Failure to comply with any one of more of these award fequir^cnts -- whether,a condition
set out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or
certification related to conduct during thc'awafd period -may result in the Office of Justice
Programs ("OJP") taking appropriate action with rcspccfto the recipient and the award.
Among olher things, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or
terminate the award. The U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ"), including OJP, alsomay
take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal govemment.related to
this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal
prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 an^or 1621, an^or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273),
and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including undCT31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requiriement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable
by its terms, thai provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it
the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is
utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2
C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted arid supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the
"Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2020 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on Decemberr26, 201:4. If
this FY 2020 award supplerhcnts funds previously awarded by OJP under :the stupe award
number (e.g., fiihds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200'UhiforTn
Requirements apply with respect to all ifunds under that award number (regardless of the
award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental
award) that arc obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2020 subaward.

® ^ Subradptent Initials-LAJj.k.



■EXHIBIT A

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to
OJP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at
https://ojp.gOv/funding/Part200UniformRequircmcnts.htm,

Record retention and access: Records pertinerit to the award that the any subredpient
("sub^ntce") at any tier) must retain - typically for a period of 3 years from the date of
submisdon of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period
applies - and to which any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide access,
include'perforinahce me^urement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R.
200.333.

In the eyent that an award-related question arises fiqih documents of, other materials
prepared or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ-in some way from,
the provisions of the Part 200'Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP
promptly for clarification.
The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Prindples, and Audit Requirements in 2
C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the
"Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2020 award from OJP.

The P^ 200 Uniform Requirements were fiirst adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If
this FY 2020 award supplements funds'previously awarded by OJP under the same award
number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the
aw^ date, and regardless of whether derived from (he initial award of a supplemental
award) that are obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2020 subaward.

For more information Md resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as theyrelate to
OJP award's and subawards ("subgrants"), sec the OJP \yebsite at
https://ojp.gOv/fundihg/Part200UniformRequircments.htm.

Record retention ^d access: Records pertinent to the award that the any subrecipicnt
("subgrantee,") at any tier) must retain - typically for a period of 3 years from the date of
submission.of the final cxp'cnditure rqwrt (SF 4^5), unless a different retention period
appliw - wd to which any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide access,
include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R.
200.333.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents of other materials
prepared or distributcd by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from,
the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP
promptly for clarification.

Compliance with DOJ Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants FinahcialGuide.as
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posted oh the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Finwcial Guide" available at
https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be
posted during the period of performance. The subrecipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

Reclassfflcatlon of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States
Code

On September 1,2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the
U.S. Code were editorially rcclassified to a.new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law
Enforcement." The feclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent
to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including many provisions
previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effecti ve as of September 1,2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory
provision that has been rcclassified'to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a
reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction
specifically includes refermces set out in award conditions, references set out in material
incorporated by reference through award conditions, and.refcrcnces sct.out in other, award
requirements.

11 Requirements relaled to "de minimls" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable
law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(1), and that
elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its
eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200
Uniforrti Requirements. Tlie "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct
costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

12
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable
information (Pll)

Any "subrecipient" at any tiw must have written procedures in place to respond in the event
of an actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-I7-12) if it (or a subrccipient)"(l) creates,
collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of
"personally identifiable information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) wifiiin the sc^e 6f^ OJP
grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Fcdejral ififonhatio'n system"
(0MB Circular A-130).
The subrecipieht's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual of
imminent breach of Pll to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit by the end of the business day in which the breach becomes known.

13 All subawards ("subgraiits**) must have specific federal authorization

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements
for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes
of federal grants administrative requirements - OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore
docs not consider a procurement "contract").

^ ^ SubfVdpiant InlUaU^
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The details of the requirement forauthorization of any subaward are post^ oni the'OJP web
site at Kttps://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthori2ation.htm (Award condition; All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific fed^I authorization), and aire incorporated by
reference here.

Speciflc post-award approval required to use a nbncompetitive approach In any
procurement contract that would exceed S2S0,000.

The subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to
obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement
contract that would excc^ the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This
condition applies to agjeemehts that - for purposes of federal grants administrative
requirements - OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not cohsidef a
subaward).

The' details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award are'posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Specific
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract wouldexcecd $250,000)), and are incorporated by fcferchcc here.

Compliance with applicable rules r^ardiiig approval, planning, dnd; reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events;

Any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with ail applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and officiahDOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and
fepo'iting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses
related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this
award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Post-award
Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

16 Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The subrecipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
efFectiveness of activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner
(including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other
applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other
applicable laws.

17 OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier - develops
of delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for
Grantees and Subrecipient, available at

® ^ Subredptent tnltisis,
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https://ojp.gov/fufidihg/Implerhent/TrainingPrinciplcsForGrantecs-Subgrantccs.htm

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscHminatfon -,28
C.F.R.Part42

Any subrccipicnt ("subgrantcc") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of
28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in subpart E of 28
C.F.R/Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity progf^.

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R.Part54

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of
28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex inccrtain
"education programs."

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrirhinatlon - 28
CF.R.Part38

Any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with alj applicable requirements of
28 C.'F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable fit)m time to time) specifically including any
applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective
program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms^
of discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal tchold a religious
belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Pan 38, currently, also sets
out rules and requirements that pertain to subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly rdigious activities, as well as rules and requirements that
pertain to recipients and subrecipichts that are faith-based or religious organizations

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations
(currently accessible at https://www.ecfT.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR7pagc =browse), by browsing to
Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter I, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

21 Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded byOJP may not be used by the
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or'policy, at any level of
government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal
statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits funds awarded by OJP from Being used by any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal
agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with
respect to the awarding of federal grant of cooperative agreement, subgfant, contract,
subcontract, or loan with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
suchaward. See 31 U.STC. 1352. Certain excqjtlons to this law, including exception that
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applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any questions arise to whether a particular use of funds by a subrecipient would or
might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact QJP for guidance,
and may not proceed wiAout the express 'prior written approval of OJPi

Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds
(rY2020)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantcc") at ariy tier; must comply with all
applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes.
Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable appropriations acts are indicated
at https;//ojp;gov/funding/^xplore/FY20AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of
federal funds by a-recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of ah
appfdpriatiohs-law restriction, the recipierit is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

23 Reporting potential fraud, waste and abuse and similar misconduct.

Any subrecipiisnts ("subgrantccs") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award —
(1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws p«teining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fî ud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should.be repdited to the OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at
https://dig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grahts.htm (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail
directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S. Department of Justice, Investigations
Division, 1425 New York Avenue, N.W. Suite 7100, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile dircclcd'to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office (Attn: Grantee Reporting)'at
(202)616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at -
https://oig.justicc.gov/hotlihe.

24
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related
matters.

No subrecipient ("subgrantce") under this awaril, or entity that receives a procurement
contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or
contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law)
of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

\

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award,

S^breclptent lnftJ«Ii.;Lm.s.



25

EXHIBIT. A

to contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates «to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any
other form issued by a feder^ department or agency governing the nondisclosure of
classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the subrecipient—
i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting .waste,
fî ud, or abuse as d^cribed above; and
ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its'employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it vrill

immediately stop any furiher obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award,'and will resume (or permit resumption
of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.
b. If the subrecipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrahts"), procurement contracts, or both-
i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity, that the subrccipient's application
proposes may or will receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"),
procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has
required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors
that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or.restrict)
employees or contractors from reporting waste, frauds or abuse as described above; and
ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise Has an adequate Actual basis, to support
representation; and
c. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor
entity that receives fimds under this award is or has been -requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award ̂ nds to or by that entity, will provide
prompt written notification to the fedefa! agency making this award, tmd will resume (or
permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

Conipliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to
employees)

The subrecipient at any tier must comply with, and is subject >to, all applicable provisions of >
41 U.S.C. 4712, including ail applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified
circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure
of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of federal
funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant

TTie subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies uridcr A j U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this
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award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or.OVWj'as appropriate)
for guidance.

26 £ncouragemeDt of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging
While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1,2009), DOJ encourages subrecipients
("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies b^ing employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to
establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to
decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers.

27 Access to records

The subrecipient (^bgrante^) at any tier, must authorize the Office for Victims of Crime
(OVC) and/orthe Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO), the New Hampshire
Department of Justice and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all records,
books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

28 VOCA Requirements

Subrecipients assure they will'comply with the conditions of the Victims of Crime Act
(VOCA) of 1984, sections ,1404(aX2), and 1404{bKl) and (2), 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2) arid
(b)(1) and (2) (and the applicable pro^am guidelines arid regulations), as,required.
Specifically, the subrecipient certifies that funds under this aw^d will: a) be awarded only
to eligible victim assistance organizations, 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2);
b) not be used to supplant State and local public funds that would otherwise be available for
crime victim assistance, 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2); and
c) be allocated in accordance with program guidelines or regulatioris implementing 34
U.S.C. 20103(a)(2)(A) and 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2KB) to, at a minimum, assist victims in the
following categories: sexual assault, child abuse, domestic violence, and underserved
victims of violent crimes as identified by the State.

29
The subrecipient agrees to submit quarterly performance reports on the performance
metrics identified by OVC, and in the manner required by OVC.

This information on the activities supported by the award funding wilhassist in asMssing the
effects that VOCA Victim Assistance funds have had on services to crime victims within the
jurisdiction.

30 Employment eligibility verification for hiring under tiie award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must—
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States .that is
or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the any subrecipient properly
verifies the'employment.eligibility ofthe individual who is being hired, consistent with the
provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

B. Notify all perebns asMciated with any subrecipient who are or will be involved in
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activities under this award of both-

1. this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and
2. the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a{a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking,
make it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide tinning (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by
this condition to be notified of the award requirement for. employment

eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C.
I324a(a)(l)and(2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the awai^'(including pursuant to the Part
200 Uriifortn Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility

verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance

with Form N9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all.pefdhent
notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance
with this condition. 3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under anyother federal program, award
funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of constructioh

A. Staff involved in hiring process
For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and dl subrecipient officials or other
staff who are or will be involved in the hinhg process with' respect to a positionjhat is or
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-verify
For purpose of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employffient eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-Venfy
(www.e*verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authoiized to act on behalf of;the
subrecipient uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify. procedures, including in the
event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nohcohfirmation") to confirm
employment eli^bility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico; Guam, the
Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.
D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any-subrecipient at
any tier, or-any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable
civil rî ts or nondiscrimination law.

£. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall-be understood to relieve any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed
by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).
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Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more infomiatidn about E-Verify
visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-vcrify.gov/) or email E-Vcrify at
E-Vcrify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at
E-VcrifyEmployerAgeht@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before
award acceptance.

Unreasonable restrictions on competition under tfie award; association with federal
government.

SCOPE. A. This conditiori applies with respect to any procurement of property or services th;
is funded (in whole or in part) by this award, whether by any subrecipient at any •tier,, and
regffdless of the dollar amount of the purchase or acquisition, the method of procurement, or
the nature of any legal instrument 'used. The provisions of this condition must be-among
those included in any'siibaward (at any tier). TTie subrecipient (at any tier), agent,
otherwise - in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on behalf of (or in providing
goods or services to or on behalf of) the federal government, and includes-ariy applicant for
such employment of engagement, and any person or critity committed,by legal instrument to
undertake any such work, project, or activity (or to.provide such goods or services) in future.

B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any subrecipient at
any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate My federal law, including any applicable
civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

1. No discrimination, in procurement transactions, against associates of-the federal
government

Consistent with the POJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements -- including as set out at 2
C.F.R. 200.300 (requiring awards to be.*'manage(d] and adrhinistcrfed] in amanner so as to
ensure that Federal funding is expended and associated programs arc implemented in full
accordance with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements") and 200.319(a) (generally
requiring "[a]n procurement transactions [to] be conducted in a manner providing full and
open competition" and forbidding practices "restricti ve of competition," such as "[pjlacing
unreason^le requirements on firms in"order for therh to qualify to do business" and taking
"[a)ny arbitrary action in the procurement process") -- no subrecipient, at any tier may (in
any procurement transaction) discriminate against My person or entity on the basis-.of such
person or entity's status as m "associate of the federi goveimmenl" (or on the basis of such
person or entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such m associate)^ except as
expressly set out in 2 CJ.R. 200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ.

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring resporisibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance
with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award
funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, Md allocable costs (if any) of actions
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designed to ensure compliance .with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

C. The term "associate of the federal government" means any p^on or entity engaged or
employed (in the past or at present) by or on behalf of the federal government - as an
-employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant

^2 Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafncking'in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

Any subrecipicnt ("subgrantcc") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements
(including requirements to report allegations) pertainiiig to prohibited conduct related to the
trafficking of persons, whether on the part of subrecipients Csubgjnntecs"), or individuals
defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of any subrecipicnt.
The details of the subrecipieht's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to
trafficking in persons are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp.gov/fiinding^xplorc/ProhibitcdConduct-Trafficldng.htm (Award condition:
Prohibited conduct by subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting
requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by referencchere.

33 Determination of suitability to idteract with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated ~ in the application for the
award (as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at tier), the DOJ
funding announcement (solicitatioh), or an associated federal statute ~ that a'purpose of
some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by a subrecipient at
any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

Any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain >
individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of ah
individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at
https://ojp;gov/fiinding/Expl6re/l ntcract-Minors.htra (Award condition: Determination of
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

34 Publications

Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published [through Federal grant funds
or matching fimds, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by
(enter the federal grant # here) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice
Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are those of the
author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice."

35 Requirement on use of volunteers

Subreciplenr -
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The Subrecipicnt must utilize volunteers to assist the program unless extenuating
circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a volunteer waiver is obtained from
the DOJ. This requirement can not be waived without a written request from the subrecipicnt
to DOJ arid a written volunteer waiver approval from DOJ.

The Subrecipient agrees to assist victims In applying for Vlctims'Compcnsation
benefits.

Such assistance includes: identifying eligible.victims; fnaking reasonable efibrts<to'notily
eligible victims of the availability/of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain the
program to victims; offering to assist victims, with the application process when it is
reasonable to do so.

37 The Subrecipicnt understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities Include:

general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, capital expenses, compensation for victims of
crime and fimdraising.

The Siibrecipierit agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless
a program income waiver Is obtained from the DOJ.

If permission to generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must
be a sliding scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on
grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the
agency inventory.

The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage of federal
VOCA funds, and location.

The Subrecipient agrees that If a financial audit of the agency Is performed, whether It
40 be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit

and any associated management letters to the DOJ, Grants Management Unit

the Single Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months
affer the siibrccipient's year-end or one month affer the issuance of the audit, whichever is
sooner.

The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agreesJo make Its financial statements
41. available online (either on the subrccipicnt*s webslt^ or the DOJ^s, or another publicly

available website).

Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered in complijmce with this
'requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that such organization files IRS
Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as several sources already provide
searchable online databases of such financial statements.
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-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrccipierit shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
as the State Agency (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided to victims of
domestic violence and sexual assault and for admimstration'pf the Sexual Assault Nurse
Examiners (SANE) Program. Funding for activities surrounding'domestic violence ^d
sexual assault victim services including but not limited to personnel, benefits, travel,
supplies, and subgrants to twelve member agencies. Additionally, administrative expenses
incurred for victim services data collection for the subrecipient and New Hampshire crisis
centers. The amount of this isubgrant is specified in EXHIBIT C, paragraphs 3a and 3b.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by Ac DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in EXHIBIT C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure r^oiting form as provid^. Expenditure^
reports sh^l be submitted on a quarterly basis, wiAin fi fteen (15) days following Ac end
of Ac current quarterly activities. Expendimre reports submitted later Aan Airty (30) days
following the end of Ae quarter will be considered late and out of compliance. For
example, with an award that begins on January J, thefirst quarterly report is due on April
J5'^ or J 5'days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses boA
state funds and match if provided and to produce Aose documents upon req'uest of Ais
office or any other state or federal audit a.uAority? Grant project supportmg documentation
shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of Ac Fedisral Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and'program reviews shall be ischeduled wiA Subrecipient and every attenipt

'  shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH DeparAient of Justice .
Grants Management Uriit
33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301
603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov
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- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ*s

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address'per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall nof

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed S3,904»672 of

the total Grant Limitation fiom Govemorand Council approval or 07/01/2023,

whichever is later, to 06/30/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amoimt not to exceed $20,000 of the

total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval of 07/01/2023,
whichever is later, to 06/30/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3c. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may

apply for an extiension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal grant
end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No

extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expens.es: or costs incuit.ed

under this a^eement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after 06/30/2024 or,

unless a grant extension is approved ins writing by DOJ.
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EXHIBIT D

-EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

Lyn M. Schollett _ ^ ^ ..{responsibleofficial]^ certify that

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence [Subreeipten/] has completed
the EEO reporting tool certification within the last two years at:
^httgs://dlD;gbv/about/ocr/fa'q-e€OD;htm on

November 3. 2021 .^date^

It is understood that subrecipiehts which arc exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipifents with less than 50 employees must filc^a declaratjon
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP-TrainingjRequirements.for-.Subrecipients

Jot Smith \ofricial.thdt completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at h^://oiVjeov/about/QCf/ocr-^inine-videos/video-ocr-training':htm on:

March 22. 2022 jiAdateX The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years.

. DDJ-Discrimination Comilalnit ̂ occss
If individuals believe they m^y have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives fedetal funding fiom the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national dri^n, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a coihplaint form that can be found at:-Civil.RiSKts^LGrants.

■■Management-Unit.]Llffl-Depai1mentof Justice

Subrcclpient Discrimination Comblalnt Process.
I further certii^ that: New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence
[Subrecipient] will comply with applicable federal civil fights laws that prohibit discrimination
in employment and in the delivery of services and has a policy of written procedure in place for
accepting discrimination based complaints fioih employees and program beneficiaries and that
policy/procedure must be made publically available to program beneficiaries or prospective
beneficiaries.

Subrodpfont lniaab.^^^1^
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Ccrtlflcd Standard Assurances^

On behalf of the Subrecipient, in support" of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, 1 certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
thai all of the following are true ̂ d correct:

(1)1 have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself ̂ d the
Subrecipient I understand that these representations will be relied upon as,material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) T certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the f^cral assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including'
fuiids sufficient to pay any required nori-fedwal share of project costs), to plan, manage, and
complete.the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address wd prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appc^ to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
Of any) made by the Department based on the application specifically, include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition^—

a. the Subrecipient urtderstands that the applicable statutes pertaining to-civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. f 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); arid section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
ofl975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimmatioti may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Cnme Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § i 1182^)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(13) 'of the Violence Against Women-Act (34 U.S.C. §
12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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c. the Subrecipient understands that it-must require any pass-through subrecipicnt.to
comply with all such applicable sta'tutes (and associated regulations); and

d. oh behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civjl rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Fait 2800 (the
DOJ "Pcut 200 Uniform RequirementB") and 28-C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and

statistical information), 23 (criminal iritelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) 1 assure that the Subrecipient will a^sUt the Department^ necessary (and-will fj^uire
subrecipients and contractors to a^ist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. ■§ 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.t. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized reprcscntatiye, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award fi'om the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(17)), I assure that, if any award funds actually arc made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of peffbrmance—

a. each such institution corhply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the Unit^ States; and
b. subject to par. a, each such ii^tituticn coriiply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the insHtution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (includirig this award
application), for accreditation^ or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise arc made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a gcverhmental entity, with respect to the aw^ (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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a. it will comply wi th the requirements of the Unifonn Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Ac^sitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displacied as a f^lt of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply, with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part.by fi^eral
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Seivices (COPS Office), 1 assure that as requiricd by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(l 1),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable taw-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Detenhination ̂ d Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(il).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, 1 as^fe as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it sup^rts, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and iaiso may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §f 3729-3730
and 3801 -3812). I' also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, aro subject to rcviw by the Di^partment, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Lyn M. Schollett^ ... Executive Director
Nanie of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor

SZfSignature ^ 0 Date
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-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

■SuDolantirig defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriate for the same purpose. Supplanting shall 'be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be require to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reuction in non-Feeral resources, occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expecte receipt of Feeral funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requeste by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Feeral
funds will not be use to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3)
httpV/www.o^iDtusdoLgQv/ifihahcialguid^/pgj^

■Supplantingiandriob retention

A recipient or subrecipient may Use feeral funds to retain jobs, that, without the use of the
feeral money, would be lost, ff.the grantee is planning on using feeral funds to retain jobs, it
must be able to ^bstaritiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,
but is not limite to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produce
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the
terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence (Subrecipient) certifies that

any funds awarded through grant number 202(I-V2-GX-0042 shall.be used to supplement

existing funds for prograin.activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfcderal funds that.have

been appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic 8l Sexual Violence (Subrecipient) understands
that isupplanting violations may result in a range of penalties, iricludihg but not limited to
suspension of future tods under this program, suspension or debarment;fix)m federal grants;
recoupment of monies provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title of Authorij^ Simori-LynNI. Schollett, Executive Director
'ii.'f

Si|mature::?^ifck:^j^^

^  Subradpleni'lnlttalt



.EXHIBIT-F,

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

>s

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipients should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certificatibn to which
they are required'to attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this fdmi. The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed When the U.S. Department of
Justice O^Department") determines to award the covaed transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or ah employee of a
Member of Congress in conricctibri with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Subrecipient*s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, 'Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (arid any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement coritfacts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgfarits and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

2*0120 Subfedplenttnttlabjf^^^!^



EXHreiT-R

A. Pursuant to DejJartmcnt regulations on nbnprocurcmcnt debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F,R..Part 2867, and to other related requi^ents, the Subfecipient certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.26(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony crinuhal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendwed against it for
commission of fraud or a criniinal offense in connection with oblainiiig, attempting to obtain, of
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasiori or "receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its-principals') present responsibility;

(c) is prcscntiy indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

c

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) tcrmihatcd for* cause or default. ,

B. Where the Subrecipicnt is unable to certify to my of the statements in this ce^ficatidn, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipicnt or.any of its principals
was convicted, within a three-.year pcnbd preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipicnt also must disclose such felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Departtnent (for OJP Subrecipients. to OJP at
Ojpcompliancercporting@usdoj.gov;,for QVW Subrecipients, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD(^sdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdpj.gov),
unless such disclosure has already beeii made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A; If the Subtecipient is a corporatibii, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that Has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative

remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner .
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or

25 of 30 Subrecl^nt Inltlatf. —



EXHIBIT F

(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (for OJP

Subrecipients, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipienls; .loOyw
at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an expiration to this application.

4. DRUG-FRJEE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, of use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-fi-ee awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subfecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, arid employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the erhployee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will —

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in Ute workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

N
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.EXHIBIT-E.

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) fiom an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee tp the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 Street, NE. Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification numbeKs) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendw' days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with resped to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against ̂ ch an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, taw
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)MaJdng a good faith effort to continue to maintdn a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this ceriification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Lyn M. Scholle_tt_ Executive D'reclor
Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signer

■r- 4.;16. ae
Signature Date

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence 100 North Main St Concord,
NH 03301
Name and Address of Agency

Subredptent InMiala ^ .
-



jExmenr g

Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability^and Transparency Act
(FFATA) Compliance

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires
Subrecipicnts of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and award^ on
or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and! associated
first-tier sub-gi^ts of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent
grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Pajl 170 (Jieporiing Subaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must rtpori the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) N AICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of p^ormahce
9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater thm $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipicnts must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-^82
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient-s
repiesentative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement execute'the following
C^fication:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all a^licable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.

2B of 30 Subredplent InWali ^'



■EXHIBIT G.
Certification

.. Lyn M>'^S,cho.llett Ex^jjgye Director

tiki. .....
.1

Signature

Nafnc of Xuthofized Sigpor . Tffle of Authorized Si^oF

Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, 1 certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity ID (SAM) number for your entity is; 'MS96M91DCAN4.

2. In your business or organ.i^tion*s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or'
organiziation receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal.
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
S25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues fiom U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub;p®is^ and/or coop^ agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop
here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the
following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the corhpensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic rejwrts fi led under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 19867

•  NO ^YES '■'

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the
following:

5. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your business or organization are as follows:

29or30 SubredntenlInitialsiwlTl .S



EjonBriiG
CcrtifiMtion

Name;

Name:

^ Name:

Name:

Name:
fTJ

Amount:

Amount:

Amount :►•

Amount:,^—

Amount: —
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on April 30, 1981.1 finther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is In good standing as far as this office is concerned.

n

Business ID; 63838

Cenificate Number: 0006198S90

<*r'.

%

%

Q *9

%

FN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this ̂  day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIRCATE OF AUTHORITV

SuMnne CafmichaeliL^ ^ hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chatrpereon/Offlcer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Vtolence ,,
(CorporatiOfVLLC Name)

2. The following te a true copy of a vote taken at a rheeting of the. Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held ftn-November 20: 2022nat which a Quorum of the Directors/shareholders were-present and voting.

'  " (Date)

VOTED: ThatJ:vn,M.-Scr^llett.>E«eciigy^lrec^
(Name and'Tllle ofContract Signatory)

Is duly authortzed on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter Into contracts or
(Narhe of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hanipshlre and any of Its agencies or departments and further ̂Is authortzeb toi
execute any and all documents, agreefnents and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, which may In hts/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendrhent to which thb certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid forthlrty
(30) days from the'date of this Certlflcale of Authority. I further certify that it is understood th^ the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certlflc^e as evidence that the person(8) listed above currently occupy the posltion(8)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed indrvldual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated; 4^.^7 ̂ ^3
Slgn^tui^ dBdddd Cmicer
Name: Suzanne. Carmichael
Title: Chairperson. Board of Dtrectors

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of M errimack

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me thls;^2. of 20^^

Btf Su:^ne''Cymlch^l
JfJaifie^f Elected of the Agency).

' (Noiary PuSlid^JustlM of ti^.^ce)

Commission Expires:.i:3^2Q24

Rav. 03/24/20



AC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATe(MIM)OrYYYY)

04/21/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIRCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If th« cartlflcatB holdtr Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, ths pollcy(laa) must havB ADDITIONAL INSURED provlalonB or b* ondorMd.
If SUBROGATION IS WAfVB), aubjB^ to th# tarins and coftdlHona of tha polley, ctftain pollclaa may rogulra en andoraamsnt A atatamant on
thia certlflcatt dots not confer righti to the carilflcata holdar In llau of auch andoratmantfa).

PROOUCER

E & S Inturanet Sttvieta LLC

21 Meadoarbrook Lsne

P 0 Box 7425

Onford NH 03247-7425

Eleanor Splnazzels

(M3)2M-27fl1 (603) 293-7186-

AQOR^tS' EleenorBplnazzoiaOe«insurance.oet

INaURCA(S)AFFORDfNO C0VERA08 NAICF

INSURER A; Giett Ameiicsn Insurance Group GAJ6

MSURCD

NH CoaOtlbn Agalntt Domestic and Sexual Violence. DBA: NHCAOSV
PC Box 353

Ceneord . NH 03302

INSURER a: Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURERC;

INSURENO:

MSURERB:

rMSUPtRP:

COVERAGES CERTIRCATE NUWBER: 2022 REVISION NUWBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIfY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD

INOICATEO. NOTWITHSTANDtNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iRnn
UNITSTYFC OF MtURANCe POUCY NUMBER

COMMCRCIAL OENEfUL UABAJTY

CLAIM9-UA0e OCCUR

OENL ACORtCATB Lfttn APFUE8 PER:

I OTHER:

bMU I r

□ LOC

MAC 5464236 22 05/15/2023 05/15/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAOE TO RENTED
PREMISES fftaeamnMl

MEOexPtAwTowpi^wil

PERSONAL SAOV INJURY

OSMERALAGCREOATE

PRODUCTS - COMP^AOO

COMBMEO SINGLE LIMIT
IEj>ediNiin

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

2.000,000

2.000.000

AUT0ll08a£ UABBJIY

ANY AUTO

I 100.000

BOOn.YINA/RY{P«

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

6CMEOULEO
AUTOS
NON-CWNED'
AUTOS ONLY

MAC 5464236 22 05/15/2023 05/15/2024 BOOaY INJURY (Pv Mtftenn

■PHCPBHwronsg

UHBRELULIAa

EXCeSBUAB X
OCCUR

CLAIMS MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000.000

UM86234007-15 05/15/2023 05/15/2024

OED MRETENTX^ t
AOOREOATE 1.000.000

"srrrWORKERS COKPCNBAnON
AND EMPLOYERS' UAIUUTY
AMY PROPfeETOfWARTNBR^ttCVTTVE
OFFICeRMEMBER EXCLUOEO?
IttandBtary M NM)
Hm. dMoN* undar
OESCRtPnON OF OPERATIONS balBw

Vl P£P ^X} kfATUTE ER

B N/A WC5>31S404S77-013 05/15/2023 05/15/2024 E.L.EACHACCtOENT 500.000

E.L. OtSEASe • EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. OtSEASE • POUCY LIMIT 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS IVEMCLES (ACOROIP1. AadUonM Ramarte 8chaduta.may M aOMtwdUmofa tpm la raqubad)

NH Department of Justice

33 Cepitoi Street

Concord NH 03301
1  . .

6H0UL0 ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCmSEO POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRUEMTATNI

ACORD 28 (2016/03)

61688*2016 ACORO CORPORATION. AH rights r«MrvBd.
ThB ACORD nams and logo art rogtsttrBd martci of ACORD



Internal Revenue Se^ice
Diistrict Director

Date: •*Wy I 8 1983

Now Hampshire Cdc^tipp Against
ratni3.y Violeric"^
'P.O. Box 3$3
Concord, NH 6.3301

HAY I snSBZMAY '2'3 )982
Department of the Treasury

P.O.. Bobc 9"ich
Bo&ton.i m 02^3

Our Letttf'Daisd:

'Hoveaber .2U,. .
Pdrton to.'CoAtaeh'

Maircus E. Darr/^J'
Contact TalephonojNumbar;

^3-^2lfT

Dear Applicant:

This modifies'.cue letter of the'above date-in which we stated that
you would be treated as an orgemizatiqn which is not .a priyate" foundation
until the expiratioh of your advance ruling period?

Bas'ed on the ih-forpati-bh. you submitted, we hays determined that you
are not a .private foundation'within the beanipg of secti.pri €09(a:) of . the."
Ihtemal Reyenue Code., because you are -ah brgahl^tl'on of .the type' desc-.ribed
in section . ,Y.6ur exoibpt'status under s.ectipn 56,1 (c) (S) of thei
code Is still in effect. wi70(b)(.l)(A5(vi'), arid 5(^\S).{r)..

Grantors and contribu'tors may Tely on this dete.rminatipn unt.il'Si-the
Internal Revenue Service' publishes notice to. -the contrary. •Howevefi. a
grantor or a contributor may not rely on this determibatibn if he; or she was
in part responsible for;, or was awa'r.e. 6'C^. the. Act ;br 'failure toi act'that,
resulted In your-.loss of. section .. . atatua. or acquired-
.knowledge tha.t the Internal Revenue Service :had. given :n'ott-co' .thai .y'pb would
be r'emoyed from; classification as a section .SObraVC 1-^ organization..
"  i- . • -

' Because this leit'er-could help resolve any'questions about your private
foundation status, please keep it lb your permanent rebords..

If you have any questions, please cbntaci the person whose name and
telephone number are shown above:

For tax yeare ending on and after December 3^»
1982, organisatioas vhoae grbse receipts are
not normally more than $25;000 ar.e excused
from filing Form 990» For.--.guidance .in
determining, if your gross 'receipts ;are
"normally" not more than the $25jOdd limit)
see the'instnictidris for the Form'990 i

Sincerely yours,

crlct Di

JFK Federal.BIdg.., Bostbh.iMass. .02203 Letter lP50v(DO) (7-77
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affidavit of :A8ENPMm '

(Reference RSA 292:5 & 292:7) F \ L E 0
■  -r AUG i 61985.

(Please completi! In .black type or Ink). NtW nAt.-.fSHlRE
S.ECRETAR^'er STATE.

I, Che undersigned, betng the Clerk . of.
(clerk,

%

Che'New Hampshire.Coalition Against Family Violence

a Key Hampshire voluntary corporation, do hereby "certify that at- a meet'lng

duly called for Che purpose, held on ^ , 1.9 85 . In
(dace)

Concord. NH , by a oiajorlCy voCe o:f. siatd
(toyn/clcy and state)

corporation. VOTED THAT: -

Che name of the corporation be changed' co' the New Hampshire Coalition.
Againsc Domestic and Sexual Violence.

. ?;•

A true record, accesC:
(clerk,

Date signed i .LU^ . I'2 19 JMi

Filing fee- payable Co Secretary of Scacc - .$10.00..
-%■

n.le original wlch Office of the Secretary of" State, Gorporaclo.ns Division.
Mailing ad.dreas: iSc'.acc House, 'Room .2QA;, Cpncocd', N. H. O'llOl.
Location: Ird Floor, State: House Annex

File copy with Clerk of the town/city of the principal place of bM-s Crfc.ss.

.1

Frt •} 9 ")



OFFICE OF SECRET-ARY OF STATE

55

I WiiLLiAM

the ■following and hereto attached -.Amehd,me-;c co .c/ne
Articles o £■ Agreeme-n't. i.nclud.ing name change o.c -NEW.
HAMPSHIRE COAUITIpN AC"A.tNS.;r FAMIL.Y VI-OLENCE to NEW

H-AMPSHXRc GOALtriON AGAriTST' OOMES.ttC .A.ND SEXUAL.
VIOLENCE has "be-en recorded 'in ch.e Rec-crds of. Vo I unta.r'v

Co'cpotac ion.s., Volume 1 - 7., Page 30.1 •

3.n-'.Gi.K9ti.inoni)' SfjrY-rcift I .hereto sei.-my- hand.and
cause-tO:be\alJixcd4jie}'Seero^^^^

•  -Cohcord, (/iij . . . day' of ... M ®
A.D; 19 8-5

Secretory of State-
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rNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violent
Concord, New Hampshire

OplDlOD

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (a nonprofit organization), vsdiich comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30,2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basb for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to flrismcial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our Tesponsibilitles under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities .of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevwt to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatment, whether due to fraud or ertor.

In preparing the financial statemerits, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that'raise substantial doubt aboiit New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the fmanciai statements are
available to be issued.

Aoditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 6nancial statements as a whole are froe fi-om
material misstatement, whedier due to h^ud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordwce with generally accepted auditing standards.and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement v^en it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
Iraud is hl^er than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatcments an considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism thrbu]^out the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risib of materiai misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to freud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriatis in the circumstances, but not for'the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateh^ of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, (he planned
scope and timing of the^audii, significant audit findings, and ceitain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Supplementary iDformadon

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule ofexperiditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived fiom and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the Hnancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures iri accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in (he United Slates of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance vrith Government Auditing Standard, we have also issued our report dated October 5,2022, on our
consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domntic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of inlemat
control over financial reporting and compliance and ̂ e results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an inte^l part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Snmmarized Comparative tnformation

We have previously audited (he New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2021 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
September 22,2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30,2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 5,2022
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,2022 and June 30,2021

See Independent Auditors* Report

2022 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 360,445 S 184,123
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 104,331 133,856
Certificates of Deposit, Short-Term - 226,062
Grants Receivable 2,261,113 2,088.047

Prepaid Expenses 25,009 23,904
Total Current Assets 2,750,898 2,655,992

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment 14,654 14,654
Leasehold Improvements 61,072 6 i ,072

75,726 75,726

Less Accumulated C^prcciation (33,551) (24,170)
Total Property and Equipment, Net . 42,175 .51,556

OTHER ASSETS

Long-term Investments 392,595 454,367
Certificates of Deposit, Long-Tcrm ^ 171,136 68,057
Security Deposit 6,213 . 6,213

Total Other Assets 569,944 528,637

Total Assets $ 3,363,017 $ 3,236,185

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable S 1,730,517 $ 1,692,068
Accrued Expenses 91,641 72,402

Total Current Liabilities 1.822,158 1,764,470

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions 1,436,528 1,337,859

With Donor Restrictions 104,331 133,856
Total Net Assets 1,540.859 1.471,715

Total Liabilities and Net Assets S 3,363,017 $ 3,236,185

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire CoaliHon Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30,2022, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30,2021
See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Asseu Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2022 2021

CONTRIBUTIONS AND SUPPORT
*

•

Grant Revenue S  10,360,042 S  82,000 S 10,442,042 S  10,259,624

Contributions 165,473 • 165,473 147,285

Donated Services 4,692 •i 4,692 ■  1,496

Interest Income 3,722 • 3,722 6,910

Miscellaneous Income 12,678 - 12,678 21,640

Total Contributions and Support 10,546,607 82,000 10,628,607 10,436,955

Net Assets Released from Donor

Imposed Restrictions 111,525 (111.525) - -

EXPENSES

Program Services 10,321,468 - 10,321,468 10,037,272

Management and General 154,423 - 154,423 93,744

Fundraising 21,800 - 21,800 18,748

Total Expenses 10,497,691 10,497,691 10,149,764

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

OPERATING NET ASSETS 160,441 (29,525) 130,916 287,191

NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES)

investment Dividends 14,093 - 14,093 10.397

Unrealized and Realized Gain (Loss) (73,579) (73,579) 78,134

investment Fees (2.286) (2.286) (1,911)

Net Nonopcrating Gains (Losses) (61.772) • (61,772) 86,620

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 98,669 (29,525) 69,144 373,811

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,3)7,859 133,856 1,471,715 1,097,904

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR S  1,436,528 $  104,331 ...S 1,540,859 .. S  1,471.715

Notes to Financial Statements



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of FuncHonal Expenses
Year Ended June 30,2022

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services & General Fundralslng 2022 2021

Solories S  1,149,926 S  101,176 S  13,592 S  1,264,694 $  1,187,973

Payroll taxes 89,346 7,861 1,053 98,260 95,076

Health and Dental Insurance 117.119 10,243 676 128,038 127,717

Other Employee Benefits 34.184 2,972 37,156 35,774

Professional Services 71,493 6,217 77.710 106,976

Contract/Grant Services 8,091,952 - 8,091,952 7,616,005

Suivivor Grants 79,225 • 79,225 127,032

Rental Assistance 211,314 - 211,314 182,398

Memberships 6,010 523 6,533 5,995

Publications 1,771 154 1,925 1,778

Advertising/Public Awareness 1,616 140 1,756 3,144

Copying 2,688 234 2,922 3.637

Office Supplies 34,353 3,348 4,154 41,855 49,640

Postage 2,954 280 266 3,500 3,577

Printing 227 119 1,147 1,493 3,851

File storage management 1,082 94 1,176 1,078

Maintenance & Repair 32,951 2,865 35,816 43,512

Rent Expense 84,466 7,345 91,811 88.542

Parking 7,176 624 7,800 7,800

Insurance 11,408 992 12,400 9,596

Staff Development 8,072 714 135 8,921 13,717

Travel 9,318 810 10,128 1,502

Telephone 51,769 4,502 56,271 54.433

Technology 111,806 'v 111,806 159,137

Miscellaneous Expense 12,996 1,198 777 14,971 4,310

AVAR Member Training/Education 827 • 827 604

Direct Traininig 32,369 32,369 46,029

Community Education 39,915 - 39,915 143,718

Depreciation Expense 8,631 751 9.382 8,282

Accounting Fees 14.504 1,261 ir 15,765 16,931

Total Expenses S  10321,468 . $ 154.423 S  21,800 S  10,497,691 S  10,149,764

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domutlc'and Sexual Violence
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30^ 2022 and 2021

See Independent'Auditors' Report

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets $  69,144 S 373,81 1

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

• Depreciation 9,383 8,282

Net (Gain) Loss on Investments ' 61,772 (86,620)

SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan Forgiveness -■ (175,000)
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable (173,066) (119,787)
Prepaid iBxpenses (1.105) (925)

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Grants and Accounts Payable 38,447 171,127
Accrued Expenses 19,239 (6,820)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES 23,814 164,068

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Property and Equipment (23,353)
Net (Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit 122,983 58,865
Proceeds on Sales of Investments - .

Purchases of Investments - (20,058)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 122,983 15,454

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 146,797 179,522

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 317,979 138,457

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. AT END OF YEAR S 464,776 S 317,979

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Donated Services S  4,692 1,496

Notes to h'inaincial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2022 aiid 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTlVmES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves'as a coordinating organization for its !2-member agency crisis centers that in
turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking. Eleven
of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their own mission,
structure, and board of directors; one'is a university-based program. The Coalition receives 96% of its funding
from federal and state agencies and less than 1% fitim private fimdraising.

The Vision of the Coalition Is;

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities through
advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violience and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual violence,

domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate oh the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staH" to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The Coalition
supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and coordinating
organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide funding for its
member programs.

Coalition sta^ provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families. Coalition
staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child advocacy centers to
assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual violence, and for their
parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions to advocate for effective
responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to drafi
legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative session. The
Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to I SO bills each legislative session. These bills address a
wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family law; divorce and child
custbdy/yisitation/supporl; reproductive rights; law enforcerhent and courts; privacy and personal information;
healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition sta^
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.

-7-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Yean Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontlnuedl

Nature of Activities fContinuedV

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout New
Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to advance
effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the causes and effects
of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the state. The Coalition
has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public. The
following are three distinct proems that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual violence and
stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a program of the Coalition that
ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking throughout
New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service program that offers opportunities to
Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to serve their country through national
service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed, throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault^ and stalking. AVAP members are trained in
the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they use in one*on-
one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic budgeting to checking
a credit report. AVAP members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local financial and housing
services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Niirse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting medical/forensic
examinations and who has the ability to Be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution. Coalition staff are
responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals across the state to ensure
that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the perpetration
of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program was built on
the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain in a safe household with
a non-violent parent.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes'to Financial Statements
Yean Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTTVlflES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention Specialists
(FVPSs) arc employed by local member agencies of the'Coalition, and arc co-located at local DCYF District
Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service workers while providing
advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This program results in more effective
assistance to victims through the development of interventions that recognize the adult victim's need for support
and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition'have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (OAAP) as applied to not-for-profils. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles for
not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the
Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These disclosures are an
integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising contributions,
and performing administra'tive functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions • These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulatioris that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or permanently,
until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Aceounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

y

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is. in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that arc restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other
donbr-festricted contributions arc reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor, restrictions.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Yean Elided June 30,2022 aad'2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the value of contributed services relating to professional
services were $4,692 and $1,496, respectively. All contributed services were considered without donor
restriction and were valued at fatr-market-value.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition; these
amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

Estimates

The preparation of financial staiements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to.paid vacation depending on job classification, len^h of services, and
other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of June 30,
2022 and 2021 in the amounts bf$7l,602 and $58,904, respectively.

/

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the sutements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited based oh estimates that aro based on their relationship to those
activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy costs'. Occupancy costs
are allocated based oh square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and
effort. Other cost allocations are based on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

Property arid EQulpirheht

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts arc expensed.
Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded as
contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions without donor restriction
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must, be used to acquire property and equipment are reported
as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight^line method.
The ranges of useful lives are as follows;

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $9,383 and
$8,282, respectively.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June30,2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITliES AND SiCNlFllCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinuedl

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c) (3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an organization that is
not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax positions of the
Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of whether any amounts are
subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a
threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Eauivalcnts

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-term
investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
reported within the statement of flnaricial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts within the statement
of cash flows as of June 30: ' '

2022 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents S360,44S $184,123
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 104.331 133.856
Total .V $464.776 $317.979

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit are repotted oh the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates bear
interest ranging ffom 1.00% to 2.27% as of June 30,2022. Maturities range from two to three and a half years.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title 1, New Hampshire, The State and Its Govem'meni, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:I-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a separate
bank account'for this purpose. The account balances were $23,455 and $16,022 at June 30,2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in accounts at two local banks. These account are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition may
have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured arnount. Management does not believe
this concentration of cash results in a high level Of risk for the CoaliHon. At June 30,2022 and 2021 the
Coalition had uninsured cash balances of.$134,6l3 and $92,848, respectively.

Advertising Costa

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30,2022 and 2021 was $1,756 end $3,144 respectively.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended J,une 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVitlES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fconrinuedl

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summari^d comparative information in total but not by net
asset class. Such information does hot include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, from which the summarized information was
derived.

Financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2022 and 2021, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other financial instruments
held at year-end are investments, which are stated at fair value.

Rcciassifications

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been rectassifled
to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October.5, 2022, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

Newlv Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In the year ended June 30,2021 the Coalition adopted Financiar Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Not-for-Prdfit Entities (Topic 958)—Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The PASS issued this ASU to
clarify and improve the scope and the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made.
The amendments in this ASU should assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted
for as contributions (nonreciprocal tiansactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as
exchange (reciprocal) transaction's subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is
conditional. Analysis of the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the
Coalition recognizes revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously Issued audited financial statements
(presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were required on a retrospective
basis. The adoption of this ASU did not have a si^ificant impact on the financial statements.

In the year ended June 30,2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Reveniie Recognition (Topic 606)—Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. This ASU introduces a new five-step revenue recognition model in which an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in ah amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Analysis of
the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Coalition recognizes revenue
and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited financial statements (presented in these financial
statements as comparative financial information) were required on a retrospective basis. The adoption of this
ASU did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND StCNTFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

in February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a lessee will
be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent
with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a
lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike
current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position—the
new ASU will require both' types of leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position. This
standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 1S, 2021.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30,2022 and 2021 respectively, the
net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2022 2021

Operations Support $ - S 20,000
Coalition Services • 20,000

Technology improvement 19,225 29,751
Human trafficking Services 55,575 40,574
Economic Support to Survivors 29.531 23.531

Total ^ IM.331 S 133.856

Net assets in the amount of SI 11,525 and S80,68l were released &om donor restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE C - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Initial annual rent was $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of
the lease term. Annual parking was $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future'minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2023 $ 103,011 ^
2024 106,546

2025 110,223

2026 114,047
2027 66.092

Total S 499 919

Rent expense related to the lease was $91,811 and $88,542 for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021
respectively. Rent paid for paHciiig spaces totaled'$7,800 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, and are included in parking expense on the statement of functional expenses.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against DomesHc and Sexuai Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE D - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021
totaled $27,848 and $23,089, respectively.

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

in accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows;

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets

For Identical Assets

2m. Fair Value (Level H
Investments $ 392,595 $ 392,595

Certificates of Deposit 171.136 " 171.136
S 563.731 S 563.731

2021

Investments $ 454,367 $ 454,367
Certificates of Deposit 294.119 294.119

$ 748.486 ^ 748.486

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions.

NOTE F- BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the following as
of June 30:

2022 2021
Fund for Grace $ 59,932 $ 56,918
Operating Reserve 148.665 148.665

$208.597 $ 205.583

NOTE G - LIOUIDITV & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities
and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support is held for '
the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial assets that could be
readily rhade available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2022 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 464,776 $ 317,979
Certificates pf.deposit, short-term ir 226,062
Grants Receivable, net of

Grants Payable 530,596 395,979
Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction (104.331) (133.856)

^ 896.041 $ 806.164
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended Jiine 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE H - investments

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value. Investments at June 30, 2022 and
2021 are composed of the following:

Equity Mutual Funds

Mutual Funds

Money Market

Exchange traded funds
Total

2022 2021

Cost Market Cost; Market

$  52,185 $  58,471 $  84,225 S  112,698

135,292 123,730 135363 134,725

32,037 32,037 22,559 22359

170.824 _ 178,357 125,635 184385

S  390J38 $ 392i95 367.782 $  454367

PASB Accounting Standards Codjfication Topic 820-10 Fo/r Value Measurements defines fair value, requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements based on the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell ah asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; It prioritizes the inputs to the
valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3.measurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities
that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are either directly or
indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All inveshnents are measured at Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets in active markets.

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions. Investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair rharket value deteimihed by "quoted market prices"
per unit (share) as of the statement of finanaal position date. All other investments are stated at cost. Donated
investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt. Gains and losses on
investments are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions, unless their use is
restricted by explicit doiior stipulation or by law.

Spending Policv

Each fiscal year the Coalition'is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total portfolio
of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund market value as
of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the approval of a
majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose, may the Coalition
exceed the 5% spending cap.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS. (conHnuedl

Investment Return Objectives. Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets of
the Coalition. The purpose of the following Investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the Finance
Committee of the Coalition are to:

Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to investments
owned or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

Identify the criteria against which the investment performance of the Coalition*s investments will be
measured.

Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources that may
have involvement.

Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments.

NOTE I - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one>year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20,2023 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 5.25% and 3.75% as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30,2022 and 2021.

NOTE J - SEA PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 23,2020 the Coalition received approval of a loan from The U.S. Small Business Administration as
part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of S175,000. this loan called for interest fixed at 1 %.
No payments were required for six months from the date of the loan. This note was to mature two years from
the datie of first disbursement of the loan.

The loan was forgiven in full under the provisions of Section 1106 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security'Act (CARES Act) (P.L. 116-136) oh February 26,2021. The revenue is included in grant
revenue in the statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June 30,2021.

NOTE k - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - COVID-19

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential iihpact of these uncertainties is unknown and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained'in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit-organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a defciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material wealcnesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations^ during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and '
Sexual Violence's financial statement are frtt from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions oHaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncomptiance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not ah objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our test's disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government AudUing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standard in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
coihmunication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 5, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New H^pshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements Identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material e^ect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30.2022. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
major federal programs are identlEed in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform'Guidahce). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federalprogfam. Our audit does not provide b legal deterinination of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, arid provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompllance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on New Hampshire
Coaiition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high

•I9-



level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Governmeni Audiiing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists, llie risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judjgmeht and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive To those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above u\d performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expresxd.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plarmed
scope and.timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in interhalcohtrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow managerhent or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federafprogram will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliwce with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Intemal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.,
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other pmpose.

fC/

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October S, 2022
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and ̂ xuai Violence
Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30,2022

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on'the financial statements of the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses arc reported.

5. The auditor's report'on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.5 j 6(a) are reported in
this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major program were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coilltioo Agaiost Domestic aod Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures ofPederai Awards
For the Year Ended June 30,2022

Federal CFOA/ Pass-Through

Program Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

Entity
Identifying
Number

Passed

Through to
Subrecipients

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. Deoflrtment orHousine and Urban Develooment:

Pass-Through Programs from Slate ofNH Deikutment of HHS:

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Continuum ofCare Program

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

14.231

14.267 102-50073!

$  528,400

224,154

752,554

S  528,400

235.447

763,847

U.S. Deoartmcnt of Justice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000
Pass-Through Programs from Stale ofNH Department of Justice:

VAWA. SASP

OVC Human TrafTicking

16.556

16.017

16.320

202ISASP0I 373,856

257,837

373,856

116,289

VOCA, Data Projects Coordinator

VOCA, Competitive

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts

16.575

16.575

16.575

2022VOC72

2022VOC31

231,088

3.239,899

24,137

244.488

3,717.342

Subtotal ■  3,470,987 3.985.967

VAWA, STOP -1 16.588 2022VAWI6 - 158.854

Total Pass-Through Programs '  3.844,843 4,634,966

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,844,843 ' 4,892.803

U.5. Dcpsnmcni ofH^slih mdHmiwi Strvjw:-:
Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act
Direct Program • Family Violence Prevention Services Act • Covid-i9

93.591

93.591

-
359,838

7,793

Subtotal 367,631

Pass-Through' Programs from State ofNH Department of HHS:
Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 219,735 310,170

Family Violence Prevention Services Act

Family Violence Prevention Services Act • Covid-l9

93.671

93.671

155510 BOOl

155510 B001

1,102.895

23,458

l,l'82.78l
23.458

Subtotal

Total Pass-Through Programs
•

1.126J53

1,346,088

1,206,239

1,516,409

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,346,088 1,884,040

CoTDoraiion for National ft Community Services:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NHI

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 229,69)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 5.943,485 S  7,770,381
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30,2022

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30,2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uhifonn Guidance, Cost Principles for Non-profit
Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to subrecipients
as follows:

Federal CFDA/

Program Title Assistance Listing # Amount Provided

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 S  528,400

Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.267 .224,154

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 373,856

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 3,470,987

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 219,735

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 1.126.353

S 5.943.485

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

Contractor Name: New Hampshiro Coalition Agalrist Domestic & Sexual Violence
.  .1. ;  , .

Name of Program: VOCA Victims of Crime Act Grant 1

; 1 .
.. .BUDGETPERIOD: SFY24 •1 ,i' ... . .....

PERCEKT'PAID AMOiiNT PAID
:

' • •• FROM THIS ■ - -FROM-THIS'••

NAME JOB TITLE ' SALARY- CONTRACT CONTRACT

iolSmllh Pregrem Ofaactor >68.662 29.00% ^  -.>18.812

JennNbr Waaki A Janet Camifl SANE DItacton $68,560 80.00% •  >60.604

Alvata Dandraa Communitv Raiailona Soaelallti >57.389 26.00% $14,921

Krfttaa Batnatl TralnhoA Raaoueaa Spacisnai >51.974 14.00% .. $7,276

Rachel Duffy Mouslno A Economic Juattce Manaoer >54.457 64.00% >45.744

KetNeen McDonald Pan time Data Pfoiecta Coonfinator >40.801 30.00% >12.240

Meohan Jenka ProBram CooRfnator >47.560 90.00% >42.804

Samh Saeiev PuMe Aftalra CoonOnalor >44.205 36.00% >15.914

TOTAL SALARIES >238.415

a



Alyssa Dahdriea

COMMUNICATIONS EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence. Concord, N.H. {October 2020-
present)
Community Relations Specialist: WorVs as a member of the Public Affairs team to expand the Coalition's
grassroots network, produce legislative updates artd action alerts. Manages statewide public awareness
campaigns and events and Is the point person for all media inquiries. Cultivates and nurtures
relationships with partners, donors, foundations and volunteers on all aspects of resource development.

Concord Monitor, Concord, N.H. (June 2016-October 2020)
Crime/courts reporter: Reported on criminal and civil cases in central New Hampshire, legislative reform,
the state correctional system, campus sexual violence ar^J victims' rights. Conceptualized and executed
long-term enterprise projects on Incarcerated parents, and the crimes of sexual assault and domestic
violence.

The Keene. Sentinel, Keene, N.H. (August 2013-June 2016)
Crime/courts reporter: Reported on criminal and civil cases in Cheshire County for print and web-based
audiences. Integrated social media into daily work and breaking news coverage.

Monadnock Ledger-Transcript, Peterborough, N.H. (June 2011-August 2013)
Reporter and ohotoorapher: Covered breaking news, courts, local government, community events, arts
and entertainment stories In Dublin. Jeffrey and Rlndge.

AWARDS

New England Newspaper & Press Association
•  Publick Occurrences for "Fighting Back" series on domestic violence (2019) and "Unsilenced"

series on sexual assault (2017)
•  Better Newspapers Competition honored 'Fighting Back" (2020); 'Unsilenced' and 'Parenting

from Prison' (2018)

New Hampshire Press Association
•  Community Service award for 'Fighting Back* (2020)
•  Contest awarded courts/crime and spot news reporting at the Senf/ne/(2014-2015); business,

education, feature and Investigative journalism at the Ledger'Transcript (2012-2013); Rookie of
the Year (2012)

Franklin Pierce University
•  Marlln Fitzwater medallion for contributions to the public discourse (2011)

CONFERENCES

30th Annual Victims* Rights Conference at Baystate Education Center In Holyoke, Mass.; panelist with
New Hampshire prosecutor, advocate and school counselor to discuss high-profile St. Paul's School rape
case(2019)

New England First Amendment Institute at the headquarters of the New England Newspaper and
Press Association In Dedham. Mass.; attendee and presenter (2014-2015)

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts, Franklin Pierce University, May 2011
Mass Communication, Minor in History, Coricentrations in Journalism and Media Studies
CPA 3.92/4.0



Kathleen M. McDonald

Data Projecte Coordinator 2020«preeent

NH Co9lilion Against Oomastic A Saxual VIolanca. Concord, NH'

•  Coordinate data coliactloh from the Coalition's 12 member programs and generate required reports to
the federal and slate programs that fund the Coalition's work with survivors of domestic and sexual
violence

«  Coordinate Cdalltion-wlde Implementation of a new data management system enabling member
programs to collect and report data more efficiently end to use their data to better assist survivors

•  Support the Coalition's Programs and PubMc Affairs teams with data and statistics on the Incidence of
domestic and sexual violence in New Hampshire and Its Impact on Individuals, families, and
communities

Workshop OealBher and Facilitator — Contract 2016*2020
Opantion Horse Powar (OHP) at Touchstona Farm, Templa. NH ,

•4*

Social Media Manager i 2016*2020

Quiltad Thraads, Hannikar. NH

Communications Manager—Contract 2012*2016
Touchstona Farm. Tampla, NH

•  Created and implemented a multi-channel communication strategy for equine-based educational
nonprofit

•  Set up templates and processes for efficient production of timely communications, from event
registration materials 16 grant applications and reports

•  Wrote daiiy content for two social media accounts, as wall blog, website, and other outbound
communications: edited communications for other staff

•  Wrote and managed eompetiilve grant applications

Director of Content Development 2007*2012

Amartcan Sodaty for fhe PrevenHon of Croe//y fo Animats (ASPCA), Naw York, NY
»  Created and then managed ASPCApfo.org. an educational website for Bnimal*welfare professionals

•  Created web content, including how*to articles. Interactive pieces, and downloadable job aids

•  Managed production and publishing schedules for ASPCApro.org. coordinating website content with
social media, weblnars. eLearning courses, and other ASPCA websites

•  Planned and coordinated website design upgrades and platform migrations

Technical Writer — Contract 2006*2007

TAC, /r»c. fnow Sc/>rje/der£/ecfrfcJ, North Andovar, MA

•  Updated print and online document sets for building control software products

Technical Writer — Contract 2004*2006

Imaglna Humana. Naw York. NY

•  Wrote how*to erticlas and created related forms an6 samples for best practices In animal sheltering

•  After Hurricane Katfiha, helped ASPCA manage lost and found pet databases created by other
agencies

Technical Writer and Instructional Designer — Contract 2002*2004

iDasign A Daltvary. Norfolk. MA

•  Designed and developed HtMl help system and Inteffaca spec for a laboratory data rnanagement
system

•  Participated In user interface development, including recommendations for user interface text



Kelhleen McDonald resume, p. 2

Technical Writer and Inatructlonal Designer — Contract 1998-2001

Autodesk. Inc.. Mencheator. NH

•  Designed and developed customer courseware and online tutorials for Autodesk engineering product
suite

•  Created Information design strategy, writing guidelines, sample files, and style guide for the l600-»
page HTML help system for Autodesk's flagship architectural softwere

Inatructlonal Designer — Contract 2000

Yenlra Corporaf/on, Acfon, MA

•  Developed classroom training materials, including PowerPoint presentations end student guides, for
warehouse data management software

Technical Writer — Contract 1997-1098

Codm$n Group. Andover. MA

•  Developed documentation for data analytic software for the healthcare industry

Technical Writer and Instructional Designer — Contract 1986-1997

Bayer Diegnostica Corporation (now Siemens, end formerly Chiron Olegnostics endClbe Coming Diagnostics).
Norwood, MA

•  Developed online help end user lnterfece text, operator's manuals, user's guides, quick reference
cards, and Interface specifications for medical diagnostic devices and data management systems

•  Designed and developed an online customer training guide; designed and led traln-the-trainer session
for technical 'service repfesentallves

•  Managed concurrent writing projects, vrorking vrith engineers and other product SMEs. marketing, field
service, technical Illustrators, other writers, and localization vendors'

Other Work Experiance

Adjunct Faculty, Bradford College. Bradford. MA

Programmer and Production Manager. Main Street Mert(ellng. ScHuale Hertor, MA

Proposal Specialist, Compuiervlslon Corporaf/on, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

Society for Technical Communication (STC)

Distinguished Technleei Commurileatlon Award and Nomination for Best of Show, 1996

Awerd of Achievement, 1991 and 1996

Award of Merit. 1991

EDUCATION

Smith College, Northampton, MA

Sache/or of Arfa, English Uleretun

•  magna cum laude

•  Phi Beta Kappa



Rachel Duffy

Work Experience
Housing and Economic Justice Specialist
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
August 2021 to Present
Oversee the HUD Domestic Violence Rapid Re-Housing grant through the Balance of State Continuum of
Care. Facilitate training and support to the 8 subrecipient agencies. Offer technical assistance to programs to
ensure they are HUP compliant. Offer monthly meetings for housing advocates across the state to increase
collaboration throughout the programs. Assist in completing annual grant application. Track grant
expenditures and complete monthly billing for the program. Manage the statewide VOCA funded Housing
First Program, including technical assistance and training to 12 member programs, process funding

requests, reporting on program outcomes, Develop and maintain statewide relationships to support housing
advocacy. Administer the Economic Empowerment Program of NH, including managing the Matched
Savings Program and training AmeriCorps Members and other advocates on financial empowerment
resources

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program Manager
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV)
August 2020 to August 2021
Effectively Managed NHCADSV AmeriCoips Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) by adhering to
mandated programmatic regulations including perfomiing back^ound checks on incoming AVAP
members, maintain member files, biannual grant progress reports, and ensuring members adhere to
service polices. Offered mentorship, training, and guidance to AVAP members throughout the service
year. Supported host sites in supervising their AVAP membm through training and ongoing
communication across the service year. Participated in AmeriCorps days of service events such hs MLK
day of service. Trained AVAP mcrnbers in implementing the Allstaie Moving Ahead curriculum for
survivors of domestic and sexual violence at their host sites. Offered educational and erriployment
guidance for AVAP members exiting the program.

Transitional Housing Advocate

Bridges Domesric and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
February 2017 to August 2020
Manage the cases of 'up to 10 families. Assist clients in searching for apartments. Negotiate fair rents with
landlords. Keep inform^ on housing laws and legislation. Cultivate strong community relationships to

■ enhance client supports. Provide financial literacy to clients through ongoing budget and savings, and
credit awareness seminars. Mairitain confidential information. Track statistical data and complete grant
reports on a semiannual basis. Work with clear jud^ent in crisis situations and provide emotional
counseling. Directly supervised the Housing First Advocate.

Shelter Manager
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
January 2013 to February 2017
Managed the cases of up to five families in a confidential domestic violence shelter. Provided direct
service and crisis counseling to all families. Maintained condition of shelter by keeping track of regular
maintenance and coordinating repairs. Lead weekly support groups at shelter. Participated biweekly on
the 24-hour crisis line. Maintained confidential documents. Tracked statistical data for quarterly reports.



AmeriCorps Member (court advocate)
Arnericorps Victim Assistance Program - Concord, NH
August 2012 to January.20i3
Assisted survivors of domestic violence in preparing legal documents such as restraining orders, and ex
pane custody orders. Advocated for clients during court proceedings. Assisted clients in applying for
legal assistance. Paniclpated on biweekly on our 24-hour suppon line. Become familiar with All State
Financial Empowerment Curriculum and provide this training to clients. Attended AmeriCorps training's
and social outreach events.

Education

Associates Degree in Behavioral Science-2019
Granite State College - Concord, NH
Certificate In Human Services-2014

Nashua Community College - Nashua, NH
UNH Supervisors Boot caiiip -University of New Harhpshire Durham, NH (Completed 7/19/18)



S. Joi Smith

SKILLS SUMMARY: '

Highly creative and enthusiastic community builder
Excellent communication and organizational skills
Aptitude for technology and Innovation
Activist and passionate participant In the arts community

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence - Program Dlrcf^or August 1020 - Present
Concord, NH

Provide leadership and oversight Iri the development and administration of member services, training and technical assistance,
statewide programs and other special projects of the NHCADSV In line with Its mission, strategic plan and community needs.
Recruit, train and supervise program staff, as they implement and sustain initiatives of the NHCADSV. Oversee training and
technical assistance efforts of the NHCADSV. Develop and implement evaluation tools for statewide programs and special
projects. Provlde"^high level management and support to the AmerlCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP.) Assist with grant
writing in response to federalj state, and private funding opportunities. Serve as liaison to the NHCADSVs 13 member programs
by Identifying needed resources and training to Improve direct service delivery. Serve on statewide committees to assist in the
improvement of multi-disciplinary response to domestic violence, sexual violence, stalking and human trafficking.

HAVEN - Manager of Client Services Ju'y - August 2020
Portsmouth, NH

Manage HAVEN client services program and supervise direct service staff. Serves as the Agency's AmerlCorps Victim Assistance
Program Advocate Coordinator and Internship Coordinator. Develop, organize and facilitate in-service and ongoing training
prograrns for all direct service staff. Interns and volunteers. Maintain and continually develop an on-going effective client
services program using best practices for survivors of domestic arid sexual violence through a 24 • hour hotline, office walk-ins,
and accompaniments to hospitals, police stations', courts and child advocacy centers. Engage and maintain excellent
relationships with victim service community partners both at the local and state level such as the NH State Attorney General's
office, NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence (NHCADSV), Rockingham & Strafford NH County Prosecutors and child
advocacy centers (CAC's), NH Department of Child, Youth and family Services (DCYF), and local Law Enforcement, pro-bono
attorney programs, and district courts.

Sexual Assault Support Services (SASS) September 2011 - July 2015
Vo/unteer Advocffte (Sept aoii - July 2012) | Night Supervisor (July 2012- Septaoij) j Oient Services Coordinator (Sept 2013 - July 2015)
Portsmouth, NH

Provide supportive services and referrals to victims and survivors of sexual violence through the 24 • hour hotline, hospital and
police accompaniments and peer support groups. Schedule and coordinate SASS's 24-hour services coverage. Provide
supervision to AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program members, direct service staff and volunteer advocates. Develop and
Implement training and programming for tfauma-ihfbrmed sexual assault/abuse supportive services.

COMMITTEES & BOARDS SERVED:

NH Child Abuse & Neglect Task Force . , 2020 - Present "
NH Child Fatality Review Committee 2020-Present
NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force 2o't7 - Present
NH Incapacitated fit Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review Committee 2020 • Present
NH Lethality Assessment Program (LAP) Steering Committee 2018 - Present
NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Advisory ̂ ard 2017 - Present
NH Wellness 81 Primary Prevention Council v 2020- Present
Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County MOT Advisory Board 2019 • 2020
Strafford County Child Advocacy Center Advisory Board 2017 - 2020
Strafford County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2016 - 2020
Rockingham County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2015 - 2020

OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE:



S. Joi Smith

Back Alley Productions - Fourufer/Oirector/Producer 2008-Present
A cutting-edge, independent theater company focused on executing a clear, strong vision for quality theater programs, and
maintaining inclusivity, integrity and respect for all Involved with each production.

Players' Ring Board of Director - Board Member/Producer Ualson/Marketlng Chair 2013 - 2019
Portsmouth, NH

A non-profit, groundbreaking, black box theater whose mission Is to provide an environment where artists can thrive, grow,
take risks and rhake daring choices. Responsible for training, coordinating, scheduling, supporting and mentoring
more than 25 production companies throughout the season, as well as planning and executing any fundraising efforts and
events for the theater. Manage and develop content for marketing, social media, and bl-weekly newsletters promoting each
production and event. Organize and facilitate community volunteer projects aimed at improving the theater space.

V-Day Portsmouth NH/V-Day Rochester NH/One Billion Rising • Organlzer/Producer/Dlrector 2001-2015
Organizing, producing and directing a yearly event focused on raising awareness and funds to end violence against women.
Organizing all aspects of these events, from casting, scheduling, staging, and directing, to securing donations and local
community support and creating content for and managing marketing and promotion of events. Fostering collaboration with
local beneficiaries and other community V-Day organizers, to cross-promote causes and events, and ensure consistent
messaging. Responsible for completing and submitting requli^d reports and reconciling budgets at the end of each event.

ADDITIONAL SKILLS:

Trainings & Croup Facilitation: Experienced In developing and facilitating on-going required training for staff, community
partner professionals, as well as developing and facilitating survivor support groups.
Technology: Proficient in both MAC and PC platforms. Expertise in Microsoft Office programs 81 Office 365, Adobe Acrobat,
Adobe Photoshop, QuIckBooks, and online project management and'file share systems such as Freedcamp, Basecamp and
Dropbox, as well as Google docs.
Marketing: Additional expertise & aptitude for website design, social media management and email marketing. Skilled at
copywriting, editing and basic graphic design.

EDUCATION;

Plymouth Regional High School 1995

AWARDS & HONORS:

2019 Everyday Hero Award
Granite State Children's Alliance & the Stafford County Child Advocacy Center
2015 Champion for Children
The Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County



Meghan

Jenks

EXPERIENCE

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Rrograms Coordinalor—February 2021 to presenl

SANE Program Assistant — May 2017 to February 2021

Prepared meeting materials end maintained detailed minutes

Coordinated communications to several cohort groups

Developed grant application narratives
Maintained distribution lists and databases

Assisted vtrith various projects

Prepared continuing education paperwork
Prepared and maintained training files and materials
Coordinated trainings and conferences
Navigated and maintained online learning system and online course materials
Edited Attorney General's protocols

NH Department of Education Bureau of Special Education, Concord, NH
Clerk— June 2016-May 2017 and summers of 2012, 2014, 2015

Audited Catastrophic Aid applteations and provided Information to districts
Navigated online database and data entry systems
Developed and filed problem reports

Trained and advised other clerks

Maintained all Cat Aid files and records

Answered bureau ar>d department phones and directed callers to resources

Covered front desk and assisted visitors

Prepared training and onsite meeting materials

Completed school monitoring data sheets
Research and synthesized special education topics of state director as requested
Drafted and edited manuals and reports for education consultants

Keene State College Human Resources, Keene, NH
Student Assistant—2013-2016

Entered data Into an online database

Maintained Excel spreadsheets

Facilitated mail merges

Assisted staff with technology and reviewed documents
Filed and maintained filing systems
Prepared training and other event materials

Greeted visitors and referred them to MR personnel or forms

Utilized copier

Maintained confidentiality

Local Government Center (now HeatthTrust, Inc.). Concord, NH
Temporary Administrabve Support Associate— 2013-2014
•  Utilized scanning system, Laserfiche
•  'Organized scan^ documents In database
•  Reviewed and categorized documents

•  Maintained confidentiality

EDUCATION

Keene State College
B.A. Women's and Gender Studies/Communications

Pembroke Academy
High School Diploma

SKILLS



•  Leadership in various oi^anlzationa as president, secretary, and treasurer
•  Notetaking

.  • Knowledge of Microsoft Word. Excel, PowerPoint, and Outlook

VOLUNTEERING AND PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

•  Triota Women's and Gender Honor'Society, Gamma Kappa chapter

•  Lambda Pi Eta Communications Honor Society. Zeta Mu chapter

•  Ann 8ntt Waling Women's Studies Recognition Award Winner
■  Presenter at Keene State College Academic Excellence Conference
•  Global Ambassador for Keene State College Study Abroad Program

•  Keene State College Honors Program

•  Volunteering with 4-H. Capitol Area Pood Program, and Pantene Beautiful Lengths



Sarah R. Seeley

Education >

Connecticut College New London, CT
Bachelor of Arts, Economics and Gender, Sexuality, & Intersectionality Studies Jan 2020 - May 2022
CPA 3.869/4.000

•  Dean's Honors (Spring 2026), Dean's High Honors (Fall 2620-Spnng 2021)

St. Lawrence University Canton, NY
Bachelor of Arts Aug 20 i 8 - Dec 2019
•  Advanced Studied Program Award (2018-2019), Dean's List (Fall 2018-Fall 2019)

Work Experience

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Concord, NH
Public Affairs Coordinator July 2022 - Present

•  Creates content to update the Coalition's website, social media, and newsletters about survivor's rights
and resources to inform victims, member programs, legislators, and the public.

•  Coordinates direct tundraising appeals in the Spring and Winter, annual giving campaigns, maintains the
donor database, creates promotional ma^rials for fundraising campaigns, and orchestrates timely
acknowledgments to donors. Additionally, supports in coordinating member program development
meetings and the Board of Directors Development Committee.

•  Supports public policy needs such ais tracking relevant legislation, attending legiislative hearings, and
assisting with the recruitment and management of the Coalition's legislative volunteer network.

Connecticut College Academic Resource Center New London, CT
Econometrics Tutor Aug 2020 - May 2021
•  Aided 40 students per semester by describing econometric concepts and addressing issues arising in

regressions to improve confidence in classwork material
•  Instructed tutees on Stata software to model and solve econometric problems through regression analyses,

proper use of .do files; and report results with output tables
Wayfarer Coffee Roasters, Laconia, NH May 2021 - August 2021
Barista

•  Promoted coffee and tea consumption by educating customers; selling coffee and coffee brewing
equipment; accessories, and supplies; preparing and serving a variety of drinks, along with house-made
liege waffles

•  Created and implemented new drink recipes for house specials, such as the Blue Moon Latte to celebrate
Wayfarer's 6''' birthday

Internship Experience

DIS Copenhagen Media Team Copenhagen, Denmark
Photographer Aug 2021 - Dec 2021
•  Completed three individual photo assignments and six photo drops to document abroad experiences and

market towards future students

•  Generated new content monthly for blog and Instagram posts, highlighting DIS student life and Danish
culture to improve online presence and increase investment towards abroad programs

Co-curricular Activities

Women's Empowerment Initiative New London, CT
Member Jan 2020 - Present

•  Collaborated with ICMH- other passionate activists to practice a monologue for a fundraiser performance
•  Allocated and managed time'weekJy to discuss upcoming events and new initiatives to enhance the

organization's structure



Janet Carroll

EDUCATION

•  New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH

Associate Degree of Nursing, May 1999

Dean's List, National Honor Society

•  New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Adult/Adolescent Training, 2005

•  New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Pedlatric Training, 2015

•  Vermont Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Pedlatric Training, 2013.

EXPERIENCE

•  New Hampshire Coalition /gainst Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

SANE Director New Hampshire SANE Program-Statewide

January 2015 • Present

•  Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH

Clinical Coordinator Forensic/Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Program

Emergency Department Staff Nurse

On-CairSANE

February 2006 > Present; Assumed Coordinator position 9/2008

•  Valley Regional Hospital, Claremont, NH

Emergency Diepartment Staff Nurse, Nursing House Supervisor, SANE Nurse

May 1999- Present

•  Mount Ascutney Hospital and Health Center, Windsor, VT

Pec'Diem Acute Rehabilitation Staff Nurse, SANE Nurse

May 1999-2015

NATIONAL CERTIFCATIONS

•  Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner- Pedlatric (SANE-P)

•  Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner-Adoiescent/Adult (SANE-A)

•  Certified Emergency Nurse (CEN)



PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

•  International Association of Forensic Nurses,

•  Emergency Nurses Association

AWARDS

•  Children's Advocacy Center; Hands of Hope

Everyday Hero Award for Sullivan County NH

November 2016

•  New Hahfipshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV)

Jennifer Plerce-Weeks Award of Excellence

May 2012

PUBLICATIONS

•  Office of the Attorney General. Sexual Assault: An Acute Care Protocol for the Medical/Forensic

Evaluation. Ninth Edition. 2018.

•  OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL, A Model Protocol for Response to Adult Sexual Assault

Cases. 2017,Edition.

•  Office of the Attorney General, Sexual Assault: An Acute Care Protocol for the Medical/Forensic

Evaluation. Eighth Edition. 2015.

•  Office of the Attorney General, Sexual Assault: An Acute Care Protocol for the Medical/Forensic

Evaluation. Seventh Edition. 2014.

•  Cbrum, V. 8( Carroll, J. (2014) Forensic Analysts' Perspectives: Sexual Assault Kits Under the

Microscope, Journal of Forensic Nursing, 10(1), S0*S7.

PRESENTATIONS (not inclusive)

•  Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical Forensic Exams: Review of SANE Services. Heater

Road Primary Care Clinics, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. September 2017.

•  Invited Presenter: Snapshot of Opiates: Heroin. Fentanvl and Carfentanil. Lebanon Rotary Club.

September 2017.

•  Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical Forensic Exam: Review of SANE Services. OB/GYN

Provider Grand Rounds, Dartrnouth Hitchcock Medical Center. June 2017.

•  Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Treatment in the ED Setting. Emergency Medicine Resident

Training. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. June 2017.

•  Invited Presenter: Care of the Sexually Assaulted Student. Southern New Hampshire University.
March 2017.

•  Invited Presenter: "Delicate Populations": Carina for Patients that have Experienced Sexual

Assault. Intimate Partner Violence. Elder Abuse. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. March

2011

•  Invited Presenter: Tfarisgender/LGTBQ: ED Visit Considerations. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical

Center. March 2017.

•  Instructor: SAiNE ̂ se Review: Trends in QA/QI Processes. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical

Center. March 2017.



Invited Presenter: Caring About Sexual Violence: A Civil Rights. Healthcare and CommOnitv

Issue. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College. January 2017.

Instructor: SANE Case Review: Care of the LGTBQ Patient Populations. Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Medical Center. November 2016.

Invited Presenter: Abuse In Healthcare. Monadnock Community Hospital. November 2016.

Invited Panelist: Intimate Partner Violence. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College.

October 2016.

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault. University of New Hampshire. October 2016.

Instructor: SANE Case Review: Elder Abuse. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. June 2016.

Invited Presenter: Survivors of Domestic and Sexual Violence In the Healthcare Setting: Ensuring
Privacy for Victims..Nursing Grand Rounds, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. May 2016.

Invited Panelist: Intimate Partner Violence. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College.

March 2016.

Invited Presenfer: Abuse: Intimate Partner. Elder. Strangulation. Human Trafficking and Sexual

Assault. Nursing Grand Rounds. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. March 2016.

Instructor; SANE Case Review: Intimate Partner Violence and the Role of the SANE Nurse.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. March 2016.

Instructor: History Taking for SANE Nurses. NH SANE Educational Review Day. February 2016.

Instructor: SANE Case Review; Suspect Exams. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. December

2015.

Invited Presenter: First Resoonder flaw Enforcement! Training for Adult Sexual Assault. Sexual

Assault Resource Team Presentations. Grafton and Sullivan Counties. December 201S*present.

Invited Presenter: Nursing Grand Rounds: Clinical Care of the Sexual Assault Patient. Dartmouth

Hitchcock Medical Center. October 2015.

Instructor: Sexuai Assault and the Role of the 5ANE Nurse for Psvchlatrv Residents. Geisel School

of Medicine, Dartmouth College. October 2015.

Instructor: Anal Anatomy and the SANE Exam. NH SANE Educational Review Day. September

2015.

Invited Presenter: Everything Law Enforcement Should Know About The Sexual Assault Kit."

But Were Afraid to Ask: New Hampshire Attorney General's Conference 'Partnering for a Future
Without Violence', Southern New Hampshire University, June 2015.

Instructor: Experiential Testimony. State of NH SANE Program. Bl-annually March 2015-present.

Presenter: New Hampshire SANE Currency of Practice Guidelines. NH SANE Educational Review

Day, Concord NH. March 2015.

Invited Parielist: Intlrhate Partner Violence. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College,

Miarch 2015.

Instructor: NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Comprehensive Adolescent/Adult Training. State

of NH SANE Program. Bi-Annually May 201S*pre5ent.

Instructor: NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Comprehensive Pedlatric Training. State of NH

SANE Program. Annually April 2015>present.

instructor: SANE Simulation Competency Exams. State of NH SANE Program. January 2015-

present.



Instructor: Clinical Care of the Sexual Assault Patient. New Hampshire Hospital Emergency

Departments. Monthly January 2015 - Present.

Instructor: What to Expect During a SANE Exami New Hampshire Crisis Centers. January 2015-

Present.

Instructor: HIV PEP "101" Following Acute Sexual Assault. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.

December 2014.

Invited Instructor: Sexual Assault Medical- Forensic Exam for Emergency Medicine Residents.

Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth Cojlege. October 2014.

Invited Instructor: Mock SANE Exam Simulation and Pelvic Exam Instruction for the Experienced

SANE Nurse. State of New Hampshire SANE Program. October 2014.

Invited Instructor: Sexual Assault Medlcal-Porenslc Examinations and the SANE Nurse Role.

River Valley Community College, Nursing Program. May 2014.

Invited Instructor: Documentation and Forensic Photography. State of New Hampshire Sexual

Assault Nurse Examiner Adolescent/Adult Training. 8i-annually 2010-2015.

invited Panelist: Domestic and Sexual Violence Panel Presentation. Center for Rural Emergency

Services and Trauma Convention. November 2013.

Poster Presentation: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations. Center for Rural Emergency

Services and Trauma Convention, November 2013.

Invited Speaker: Sexual Assault Medical-Foref>5ic Examination and The SANE Nurse Role-

Update for law Enforcement Officers: Grafton County NH. August 2012.
s*'-. . ' .

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations and Strategy Session. Praxis

International. June 2012.

Invited Instructor: Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations for Gvnecologv and Obstetrics

Medicine Residents. Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College. Annually March 2012-

present.

Invited Presenter: Sexual Assault Can Happen. Hanover High School. Yearly 2011-Present.

Invited Presenter: Medical-Forensic Sexual Assault Examinations. Hanover High School Intensive

Week. April 2011.

invited Presenter: Ca'ring for Sexual Assault Patients. Sullivan County NH EMS Training. June

2010.

Invited Instructor: Pelvic Exam Instruction. State of New Hampshire Sexual Assault Nurse

Examiner Trainings. Bi-annually 2008-Present.

Invited Presenter; Sexual Assault Medical-Forensic Examinations. Volunteer Advocate Training

for WISE of Grafton County and Turning Points Network of Sullivan County. Quarterly February

2008-Present.

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES

•  New Hampshire Human Trafficking Task Force- Victims Services Committee: Member. May
2017-Preseht.

*  New Hampshire Attorney General's Elder and Incapacitated/Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review

Committee: Member. August 2016-Present.



New Hampshire Attorney (jeneral's Domestic Violence Fatality Review Committee: Member.

March 2016-Pres'eht.

Orange County VT Special Investigation Unit Resource Team: Member. June 2014- Present.

Windsor County VT Domestic and Sexual Violence Task Force: Member. February 2014- Present.

Northern Grafton NH County Sexual Assault Resource Team: February 2015-Present.

New Hamoshlre'Sexuat Assault and SANE Advisory Board: Co-Chair &Member. January 2014-

Present.

Sullivan County NH Sexual Assault Resource Team: Member. January 2014-Pre5ent.

Windsor County VT Special Investigation Unit Resource Team: Member. January 2013-Present.

Southern Grafton County NH Uooer Vallev Sexual Assault Resource Team: Member. December

2012-Present. '

Windsor County VT Sbe'cial Investigation Unit Resource Team: Member. January 2014-Present.

Domestic and Sexual Violence Task Force at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center: Member.

June 2008-Present.

CQNTINUINij EDUCATION fNot all inclusive)

International Association of Forensic Nurses: Scientific Assembly. October 2017.

Granite State Children's Alliance: Emerging Issues and Multidisciplinary Response in Child

Abuse. September 2017.

Advanced Cardlk Life Support. September 2017.

NH SANE Education Day: SANE-Aand SANE-P Board Certification Review Course. August 2017.

FamllyJuistice Centers Program: Webiriar- Usie of the Imaging Protocol in Nonfatal Strangulation

Cases. July 2017,

NH SANE Education Day: Forensic Case Review and Serving Transgendered Populations. May

2017.

Shield Our Children Conference. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. April 2017.

International Association of Forensic Nurses: 2017 Weblnar Series- The National Medical

Forensic Exam Response Protocols and Federal Funding {VOCA and VAWA). March 2017.

Tribal Forensic Healthcare: Intimate Partner Violence Examiner Course. March 2017.

NH SANE Education Day: Campus Response to Sexual Assault and NH Sexual Assault Evidence

Kit Update. March 2017.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center: Emergency Department Nursing Update. March 2017.

Trauma Nursing Core Course. February 2017.

Emergency Department Nursing Update: Pediatrics. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.

January 2017.

NH SANE Educatiori Day: CurriculumVitae Writing and Adult Case Review. December 2016.

Intimate Partner Violence Examiner Training. October 2016.

Pediatric Advanced Life Support. October 2016.

International Association of Forensic Nurses: Scientific Assembly. September 2016.

NH sane Education Day: NCA Standards and Case Review. Septerhber 2016.

VT SANE Education Day. September 2016.



Children's Safety Network: Weblnar- Preventing Adolescent Dating Abuse; Research and

Practice. August 2016.

NH Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect & NH Governor's Commission on

Domestic and Sexual Violence: Partnering for a Future Without Violence. June 2016.

Basic Life Support. June 2016.

NH SANE Education Day: Victim Privacy, Case Review and Intimate Partner Violence. May 2016.

Shield Our Children Conference. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center. April 2016.

The 2016 ̂xual Assault Resource Team (SART) Summit. April 2016.

SANE Intensive Pfeceptorshlp. University of Colorado, Memorial Hospital, Colorado Springs.
April 2016.

NH SANE Education Day; Currency of Practice and Case Review. February 2016.

NH SANE Education Day: Male Survivors and Case Review. December 201S.

International Association of Forensic Nurses: ScientlRc Assembly. October 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Sexual Assault Update 2015. September 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Focus on Pediatrics. June 2015.

NH Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse andNeglect & NH Governor's Commission on

Domestic and Sexual Violence: Partnering for a Future Without Violence. June 2015.

NH SANE Education Day; Experiential Testimony Training. May 2015.

NH SANE Education Day: Human Trafficking and Strangulation. March 2015.

SANE Sustainability Course Completion. lAFN Course. April-May 2013.

International Association of Forensic Nurses. Scientific Assembly. October 2013.

Monthly Pediatric SANE Case Review. Child Advocacy and Protection Program. 2013-Present.

Quarterly DHMC SANE Team Case Review. 2006-Present.

Regular attendance NH SANE Educational Days. 2006-Present.

Regular attendance VT SANE Educational Days. 2006-Present.

COURTROOM TESTIMONY/DEPOSITION

State of New Hampshire vs. Thomas. November 2016.

State of Vermont vs. Mullen. September 2013

State of Vermont vs. Dall. May 2013

State of Vermont vs. Sadis. May 2013

State of New Hampshire vs. Jurado. December 2012

State of Vermont vs. Wheelier. December 2011

State of Vermont vs. Mullen. September 2011

State of New Hampshire vs. Murgatroy. March 2011

State of New Hampshire vs. Jordan. June 2010

State of New Hampshire vs. Thomas. January 2010

State of Vermont vs. Handy. January 2009

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL NURSING CERTIFICATIONS

*  Trauma Nurse Core Course {TNCC)-present

•  Emergency Nurse Pediatric Course (ENPC)-past



•  Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS)*present

•  Pedlatric Advanced Life Support {PALS)-present

•  (Neonatal Resuscitation Provider (NRP)-pdst

•  Basis Life Support (BL5)-present



JENNIFER'PIERCE-WEEKS RN, SANE-A®. SANE-P®

EDUCATION

St. Mary's Hospital School of Nursing
Registered Nursing Diploma
Amsterdam. NY

Granite State College

RN-BSN Program
Concord, NH

12/1986

In process

CERTIFICATION

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner • Adult/Adolescent
International Association of Forensic Nursing
Board certified SANE-A. Initial item writer.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner - Pediatric

Intemationaf Association of Forensic Nursing

Board certified SANE-P. Initial item writer.

I/2002-present

1/2007-present

RELATED EXPERIENCE

International Association of Forensic Nursing

Chief Executive blTicer
Chief Operations Officer
Interim CEO

Education Director

Manage a three year National Institute of Justice grant, developing
and implementing a web-based Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner
training program with additional on-site clinical skills lab. Promoted
to Education Director in January of 20IS

SANE Program Director
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Co-manage the statewide Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Program

SAFESTAR Project Consultant

Southwest Center for Law and Policy
Assisted in the creation of a'tribat curriculum to address the sexual

assault medicarforensic examination in Indian Country

SAFE Passage Child Advocacy Center
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner

Performed non-acute examinations of children believed to be sexually abused.

Memorial Hospital Forensic Nurse Examiner Program

Forensic Nurse Examiner

10/2017-present

03/2017-10/2017

12/2015-10/2016

1/2011-3/2017

January 2015 - present

January 2010 - present

2008-2011

2007-2014



Practiced as a FNE on the team from 2007 through 2008. Was
promoted to Manager of the team from 2008-2011. Left the Manager
role to work for lAFN, remained in clinical practice as a FNE on the

team. In January of 2011 began coordinating the State of Colorado
SANE program through a ̂ ant received by Memorial.

NH Coalition Against tlomestic and Sexual Violence and the NH Attorney Generars Office
Director, State of NH SANE Program 1996-2007

Developed, implemented, evaluated and managed the statewide Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner
program. Developed, implemented, evaluated and managed the statewide health care initiative and
standards campaign on domestic violence. Trained'several hundred health care professionals throughout
New Hampshire and nationally on SANE adolescent/adult and pediatric, as well as screening and <
intervention for patients experiencing intimate partner abuse, and the multidisciplinary response to sexual
and domestic violence. Developed and distributed globally a domesric violence screening video for health
care professionals. Consulted on an as needed;basis with ie Office of the Chief Medical Examiner and
state prosecutor offices on sexual assault cases.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical'Center

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner 2003-2007
Practiced as a Sexual Assault Nuise Examiner and IV Team Nurse per diem. /

Valley Regional Hospital
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner 1990-2000

Full-time ED staff nurse, triage and charge positions. Nursing Supervisor covering the house as
needed. Implemented and coordinated the first hospital-based SANE program in the state.

Newport Hospital 1988-1990
Emergency Department Staff Nurse, Nursing Supervisor
Full-time ED staff nurec, triage and charge positions. Nursing Supervisor covering the house as needed.
Completed assignments as a nurse at Wyoming Medical Center in Casper and Santa Rosa Medical Center
in San Antonio.

Sullivan County Rehabilitation Center 1987-1988
ICF/MR Nurse Manager

Coordination of medical care for 10 residents, all severely developmentally disabled.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center 1986-1987

Staff Nurse, Neurosurgical Unit

PUBLICATIONS AND PAPERS

American Nurses Association and International Association of Forensic Nurses. (2017). Forensic Nursing
Scope and Standards ofPractice, 2'^ Edition. Silver Spring, MD: ANA and lAFN. (Contributing author)

Clements, FT., Picrcc-Wecks, J., Holt, K£., Giardino, A?., Seedat, S.j^orticrc, C. Violence Against
Women: Contemporary Examination of Intimate Partner violence. STM Learning, St. Louis MO. 2014

Delivery and Evaluation of Sexual Assault Forensic Examiner (SAF^ Training Programs. Patterson, D.,
Resko, S., Pierce-Wecks, J., Campbell, R. http$://www.ncjrs.gov/pdfTilesl/nij/grants7247081.pdf. 2014

Sexual Violerice in Later Life: A Technical Considerations Guide for Health Care Providers. NSVRC
http://www.nsvrc.org/sites/dcfault/fijes/publications_nsvrc_guides_scxual-violencc-in-later-life_health-
care-providcrs.pdf. 2013

The Clinical Management of Children and Adolescents Who Have Experienced Sexual Violence and
Exploitation, Technical Considerations for PEPFAR Programs h^://www.aidstar-
one.com/focus_areas/gcnder/rcsourccs/prc_tcchnical_considerations USAID's AIDS Support and



Technical Assistance Resources, AJDSTAR One. 20li3.

Consensual Sex Injury. Markbwitz, J and Pierce-Wceks, J. In T. Henry's Atlas of Sexual Violence. Mosby,
St. Louis, MO. 2013.

An Examination of SANE Data: Clinicai considerations based on victim-assailant relationship. Murphy,
SB., Potter, SJ., Pierce-Weeks. J., Stapleton, JG and Wiesen-martin, D. Journal of Forensic Nursing,
7:lj7-I44. 20fl.:

Providing Coiitcxt for Social Wortcei^s Response to Sexual Assault Victims. Murphy, SB., Potter, SJ.,
Pierce-Wceks, J. and Phillips, K. Affilia, 26(l):90-94. 2011.

Findings frorti Sexual Assault Nurse Examiners (SANE): A Case Study of New Hampshire's Pediatric
SANET)atabase Nursing, 6(4):163-169. 2010.

The Challenges Forensic Nurses Face When Their Patient is Comatose: Addressing the Needs of our most
Vulnerable Patient Population. Pierce-Weeks, J. Campbell, P. Journal of Forensic Nursing. 2008.

Sexual Assault: A Hospital Protocol for Forensic and Medical Examination Co-Author Fourth Edition.
NH Attorney General's Office: 2CK)5.

Addressing Intimate Partner Abuse and Its Health Implications Piercc-Weeks, J. and Little, K. The Female
Patient. 2004.

Nursing Approach to the Evaluation of Child Maltreatment Giardino, ER and Giardino AP. Chapter 9.
2003.

National Consensus Guidelines on Identifying and Responding to Domestic Violence Victimization
in Health Care Senings. Co-Author. The Family Violence Prevention Fund. 2002

Sexual Assault: A Hospital Protocol for Forensic and Medical Examination. Co-Author Third Edition.
NH Attorney General's Office. 2002.

A 14 year old Victim of Sexual Assault with an Imperforate Hymen and Urethral Meatus Tear. Tremblay,
j. Journal of Emergency Nursing. 1999.

TEACHING EXPERIENCE (not all inclusive)

lAFN Conference 2017
Implementing a Strangulation Protocol
Words Matter: The Art and Science of Trial Testimony

lAFN Conference 2016
OyC TTAC SANE Program and Operations Guide
A National Adiilt/Adolescent Medical Forensic Exam Protocol

NH Coalition Againist Domestic and Sexual Violence 2016
Adult and Pediatric SANE training
Clinical Skills Lab Training

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence 201S
Adult and Pediatric SANE Training

Clinical Skills Lab Training

University of Colorado Health
Comprehensive SANE Training 2014



Tribal Forensic Healthcare Billings, MT

Pcdiatric SANE training 2014

University of Colorado Health
Lethality of Strangulation (Pediatric) 1 2014

Tribal Forensic Healthcare

Learning Management System

Straddle Injuries versus Sexual Assault 2014

Rainbow Womeri and Children's Hospital Cleveland, Ohio
Pediatric SANE Training 2013

Flagstaff Medical Center
Advanced Forensic Nurse Exaihirier Training-Intimate Partner Violence 2013

Sioux Falls, South Dakota for OVC TTAC
Adult/Adolescent SANE Training 2013

Tucson Medical Center

Advanced Forensic Nurse Examiner Training-Intimate Partner Violence 2013

Chinle Reservation

SANE/SART Training-Strangulation and Traumatic Brain Injury 2013

Billings Clinic, Billings, Montana
Pediatric SANE Training 2013

lAFN Learning Management System
Straddle Injuries versus Sexual Assault 2012

Colorado Springs Police Department Recruit Academy
Strangulation in the Living Victim , 2012

Indian Nations Conference

The Lethality of Strangulation 2012
Recognizing and Responding to Brain Injured IPV Victims

lAFN Learning Management System
Expanding Your Practice 2012

lAFN Scientific Assembly
Beyond SANE: Expanding Your Practice 2012
Until the SANEs Arrive: Addressing Evidentiary Exams in Indian Country .v
What's Threatening the Viability of your SANE Program
Medical Findings' in Child Sexual Abuse
Creating a Defensible Practice'

Peterson Air Force Base

The Lethality of Strangulation 2012

National Advocacy Center
Investigating and Prosecuting Sexual Assault in Indian Country
The Medical Forensic Sexual Assault Exam 2012



Red Wind Consulting (for Indian Health Services)
Clinica) Skills Laboratory 2012

Futures Without Violence

Health Care Conference

American Indian/Alaskan Native Pre Conference Workshop 2012

Memorial Health System
Lethality of Strangulation 2012

Memorial Health Systerh
Pediatric Sexual Abuse Review Course 2011

Fort Bragg
Intimate Farmer Violence Identification and Response 2011
Danger Assessment

Southwest Center for Law and Policy
S AFESTAR Training at the Tohono O'odham Nation 2011

State of Maine Attorney General's Office
Pediatric Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Course 2011

National SART Conference

RN versus MD in pediatric sexual abuse evaluations (with Dr. Rich Kaplan) 2011
SART: When things go to hell
Medical Findings in Child Sexual Abuse
Rural Issues

Colorado Springs Police Department
Lethality of Strangulation 2011

More (upon request)

AWARDS

Virginia Lynch Pioneer in Forensic Nursing Award, lAFN October 2013

Outstanding Advocacy and Community Work in Ending Sexual Violence from the National Sexual
Violence Resource Center January 2004

Dr. Roger Fpssum Award for outstanding dedication and service on behalf of New Hampshire's
children from the NH Attorney General's Child Abuse Task Force January 2001

National Coalition Against Sexuaf Assault's Women Holding Up the World award presented by
Women's Information Services, Inc. January 1998

Dr. Roger Fossum Award for outstanding dedication' and service on behalf of New Hampshire's
children from the NH Attorney General's Child Abuse Task Force January 1997

Victim Justice A New Day Dawns award in recognition of exemplary service and
dedication to providing quality services and fair treatment to victims of crime
from the Sullivan County District Attorney's Office

January 1996



CONSULTING

State of Maine Attorney General's Office
Rainbow Women and Children's Hospital

ClevelMd, OH

United States Military Branches-prosecution

and defense

Billings Clinic, Billings, MT
National Sexual Violence Resource Center

USAID

Indian Health Services

Private Defense Attorneys
Disbnct and Prosecuting Attorney's Offices nationally

MEMBERSHIPS/ACTIVITIES

. International Association of Forensic Nurses

American Nurses Association

Emergency Nurses Association



KRISTEN BARNETT

EDUCATION

Northeastern Unlvenity School of Law, Boston, MA Juris Doctor, with Concentration in Criminal Justice, May
2022

Clinical Work: Domcstic'Violcncc Institute, Student Attorney (Winter 2020/2021, Summer 2021,

Spring 2022)

Other: Teaching Assistant (Spring 2022)

Boston University, Boston, MA, Bachelor of Science in English Education, May 2019

Honors: Dean's List, Academic Achievement Award (2017-2018) Resident Asristant with minimum 3.5 CPA

Activities: Residential Life, Resident Assistant; School of Mutation, Dean's Host; 16,000 Strong, Chair of Social

Media

EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH, August 2022- present

Training and Resource Specialist

Create and deliver trainings to increase capacity for professionals of varied disciplines working with survivors of

intimate partner violence, collaborate with Coalition staff and other state agencies to develop trainings, facilitate

monthly cohort meetings, provide support and trainings to staff at Coalition member programs.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH, March 2022-August 2022

Prevention Coordinator

Support and provide technical assistance to twelve educators across the state; faciliute monthly cohort meetings;
evaluate and assess programming and curriculum materials; collaborate and develop education and outreach
materials; engage in multidisciplinary state-wide RSA 188:H Task Force

New Hampshire Hlllsboroiigh County- North Superior Court, Manchester, NH, September 2021-Deccmbcr

2021

Law Clerk Intern

Drafted judicial orders; conducted legal research; crafted memos for judges; researched case law and
statutory law; discussed legal arguments with judges; observed court proceedings; took notes on hearings
for judges

The American Bar Association Center on Children and the Law, Washington, D.C., February 2021 -May 2021

Kinship Project Legal Intern

Conducted extensive legal research on current legislation and social science reviews regarding kinship foster care
to draft summaries and policy recommendations; communicated with local kinship support service providers;
attended legislative roundtable sessions for state/city goverrunents; created informative resources for kin
caregivers nationwide



New York Cify Administration for Children's Services, Queens, NY, June-August 2020

Family Court Legal Services Intern

Interviewed social workers; drafted petitions of abuse/neglect; orally argued petitions in family court;
conducted legal research on current case law; drafted appellate brief; prepared materials for discovery

Fenway High School, Boston, MA, September 2018-May 2019

Practicvm Student Teacher

Worked in a Boston public high school 40+ hours a week; created and delivered Humanities curriculum to two
12*''grade classes, one H th grade inclusion classroom, and two sections of mixed age English language learning
students; attended faculty meetings; co-planned lessons with colleagues; reached out to community organizations
to create weeklong (experiential learning program; graded assigrunents; tutored students of all years through after
school academic help program

826 Boston, Boston, MA, Jantiaiy 2017-Decembcr 2018

Tutor

Supported K.-12 students two days a week with homework on a variety of subject areas including math, language
arts, and biology; practiced brainstorming techniques; revised writing pieces; worked with English language
learning students to complete homework

"Let's Get Ready" Program, Maiden, MA, January-May 2016

Critical Reading and Writing Coach

Created and implemented lesson plans teaching grammar concepts, reading strategies, and SAT test taking skills;
revised colleges essays for Maiden High School students

Boston University Children's Center, Boston, MA, August 2016-May 2018

Assistant teacher

Engaged and supported children ages 2-5, in classroom setting; fostered effective communication between children

Hibcrnia College, Dublin, Ireland, June-August 2018

Intern for Primary . Education Team

Drafted hew curriculum proposal; reviewed graduate-level student dissertations; coordinated assessments

T ANGIIAGE SKILLS

Spanish (Limited Working Proficiency); American Sign Language (Limited Working Proficiency)



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Job Description; Community Relations Specialist

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (The Coalition) creates
safe and just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone
affected by sexual violence, domestic violence, and stalking. •

The above mission is accomplished by The Coalition which includes 13 independent
community-based merrtber programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working
together to: 1) influence public policy on the local, state and national levels; 2) ensure that
quality services are provided to victims; 31 promote the accountability of societal systems
and communities for" their responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking; A)
prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Job Objective and Summary: Assist with the development and implementation of The
Coalition's public communications arid fundraising initiatives. Works within a team of the
Executive Director and Public Affairs Director and other Public Affairs staff to develop and
implement communication arid development strategies to broaden the impact of The
Coalition and its 13 mem'ber prograrris.

These primary job functions will be performed at The Coalition's office in Concord, New
Hampshire. The employee must have access to reliable transportation to arid from work.
This employee must be able to work a flexible schedule, available on nights and weekends to
respond to media requests, update social media platforms, and monitor news. Occasional
statewide travel is required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

COMMUNICATIONS.

•  Collaborate with the Executive Director and Public Affairs Director to create and
implement a communications plan

•  Serve as a point person for general media inquiries to The Coalition and coordinate
responses to media requests, including crisis communications

• Work with the Public Policy Specialist to expand The Coalition's grassroots network,
to produce legislative updates and action alerts, and to implement and promote
public policy initiatives and campaigns

•  Update Coalition website, generate monthly newsletters, maintain media and
grassroots contact databases

•  Create and distribute Coalition materials

•  Manage statewide public awareness campaigns and events
•  Coordinate The Coalition's participation in regional and national public awareness

efforts

•  Develop The Coalition's marketing strategies, and coordinate outreach efforts to
ensure consistent messaging across all communications materials and social media
platforms



DEVELOPMENT

•  Collaborate with the Executive Director. Public Affairs Director, and Public Affairs
Coordinator on all aspects of resource development, including strategy-building,
cultivation, gift solicitation, and stewardship

• Work with the Public Affairs Director and Public Affairs Coordinator to present an
annual development plan and prepare and present regular progress reports to Board
of Directors, and serve as staff support to the Board of Director's Development
Committee

• Work with Executive Director and Public Affairs Director to cultivate and nurture
relationships with partners, donors, foundations, volunteers, and other external
stakeholders to strengthen major gifts/planned gifts. Specifically, help identify and
develop a portfolio of major gift prospects and grants aiid manage specific donors
within that portfolio

GENERAL

•  Participate in staff meetings, attend community events, and otherwise contribute to
strengthening the deep roots within The Coalition's community, both internally and
externally

•  Plan and execute volunteer trainings

• Manage media database
•  Provide trainmg and technical assistance to member programs and the The

Coalition's Board of Directors on public relations, communications, volunteer
recruitment, and media advocacy

Skill Requirements:

•  Skilled communicator with superior interpersonal, verbal and written skills,
including experience with crisis communications

•  Proficient in fundraising including experience managing online fundraising databases
and the creation of dynamic materials and presentations for individual and corporate
prospects and renewals

•  Knowledge of current best practices in social media; expertise in navigating the
current mainstream social media platforms

•  Knowledge and exjjerience in website management
•  Knowledge and ability to work within design and publishing programs
•  Proficiency with Microsoft Office Suite
•  A strong work ethic, essential for this demanding environment that continually

strives for excellence

Desired:

High emotional intelligence, able to easily develop deep, trusting relationships with
diverse individuals from many differeht backgrounds
Humble, knows when to ask for help and advice from others

A great sense of humor



•  The ability to work quickly and nimbly under pressure and in a fast-paced
environment

• An incredible passion for our mission that invigorates and excites everyone with
whom you connect

.. • Demonstrated understanding of and commitment to domestic and sexual violence
issues

•  Experience with Giftworks donor software. Constant Contact, and with Frontstream,
an entreprise fundraising platform

Educational Level: Bachelor's Degree or equivalent experience

Physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described here are
representative of those thM must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of
this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to
perform the essential functions:

o Must be physically and mentally capable of performing multiple tasks (such as phone
calls, computer work, attending meetings] and able to consistently function well in
a fast-paced environment,

o Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use
his/her wrist, elbow and shoulder,

o Must be able to talk and hear.

o Ability to bendi lift and carry equipment and other materials (up to 30 pounds).

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work
expected for this position. They are not to be construed as an exhaustive list of all
responsibilities, duties, and skills required. All personnel may be required to perform
duties outside of their normal responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and employing
diverse staff. We strongly encourage people of diverse racial, gender, and ethnic identities
and abilities to apply.

Position reports to:

d

For Human Resources Only
Job Cateaorv ■■ Soecialist ■:

Exempt/Nonexempt Exempt
This is a full time AO hours per week ■
Dosition

Supervisor Community Relations Specialist
Departmenlls) j

'Last Revised *• September 2019 •,
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Job bescrip'tion: Data Projects Coordinator

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just
communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking.

The above mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-
based member programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to: 1)
influence public policy on the local, state and national levels; 2) ensure that quality services are
provide to victims; 3) promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their
responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking; 4) prevent violence and abuse
before they occur.

Job Objective and Summary: Coordinate statewide leadership, advocacy, training, technical

assistance and reporting aspects of the victim serviceSj and education and outreach data
collection systems. The goals of those systems are to ensure and improve secure data collection
infrastructures, ensure and improve functionality and compliance of to various fiinder
requirements, and invest in domestic and sexual violence program advocates' capacity to
produce and report quality data.

These primary job functions will be performed as a telework position. The Coalition's office is
in Concord, NH. The Data Projects Coordinator will be required to attend biweekly staff
meetings at the offices, as well as other scheduled meetings as necessary. The employee must
have access to reliable transportation. Occasional travel will be required throughout New
Hampshire.

Essential Functions:

o Provide technical assistance and support to member programs, staff and
collaborating agencies as requested, around data elements, database functionality,
trauma informed data collection, confidentiality, reporting requirements, etc.

o Respond to training requests by member programs
o Assist with the management of data systems services and vendor contracts
o Collaborate with funding agencies to develop strategies to improve data quality
0 Participate in agency workgroups as identified
o Develop documents to guide data quality efforts

• Administrative Duties

b Oversee internal data collection for grant reporting
o Assist with grant proposals as needed
o Contribute an anti-oppression, meaningful access, and trauma-informed data

collection lens to internal policy updates for agency documents, such as Coalition
Program Standards, and data definitions

Minimum Requirements: Working knowledge of database structures. Project management
experience related to database creation and implementation.

Qualifications:
o Proficient in Microsoff Office.

o Competent with electronic communication such as email and online meeting management
o Must be-flexible, pleasant, and able to interact well and positively with people of diverse



backgrounds,
o Detail oriented.

6 Excellent organization skills, including the ability to follow through on projects
0 Ability to take direction, work independently and as part of a team, and be self-

motivated.

o An understanding of domestic and sexual violence issues, and multi-disciplinary
approaches preferred.

Physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described here are representative
of those that must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions:

o Must be physically and mentally capable of performing multiple tasks (such as phone
calls, computer work; attending meetings) under stressful situations and able to
consistently function well in a fast paced environment,

o Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use his/her
wrist, elbow and shoulder,

o Must be able to talk and hear.

o Must complete a NHCADSV member program advocate training during employment, or
have previous advocacy training,

o Limited in-state travel required

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work expected for
this position. They are.riot to be Construed as ah exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, and
skills required. All personnel may be required to perform duties outside of their normal
responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The hJH Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and employing
diverse staff. We strongly encourage people ofdiverse racial, gender, and ethnic identities and
abilities to apply.

For Human Resources Only

! Job Cateeorv. Coordinator . .!

Exempt/Noncxempt Non Exempt

This is a part time position^ 20 hours per week

Supervisor Administrative Director

Department(s) . Administration and Finance

1 Last Revised December 2019'



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Job Description; Housing and Economic Justice Manager

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just
communities through advocacy. prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking.

The above mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent
community-based member programs, a board of directors and a' central staff working together
to: 1) influence public policy on the local, state and national levels; 21 ensure that quality
services are provide to victims; 3) promote the accountability of societal systems and
communities for their responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking: 4) prevent
violence^ and abuse before they occur.

Job Objective:

Responsible for the implementation and coordination of the Coalition's statewide housing and
economic justice initiatives, enhancing member program and community capacity to provide
housing and economic justice supports to survivors of domestic violence, sexual violence,
stalking and human trafficking throughout the state of New Hampshire.

These primary job functions will be performed at the Coalition's office in Concord, NH. The
employee must have access to reliable transportation to and from work. Occasional travel
may be required throughout New Hampshire as necessary.

Essential Functions:

•  Coordinate and enhance the Economic Empowerment Program of NH.
•  Manage the Matched Savings Program.
•  Train member programs advocates and AmeriCorps members on the AllState

Curriculum.

•  Provide technical assistance to advocates and AmeriCorps members on the
implementation of financial literacy programming.

•  Sustain and create new partnerships to develop asset building tools for survivors to
benefit from.

Implementation and management of the Domestic Violence Housing First program and
Rapid ReHousing Program in conjunction with other staff.
Provide training and technical assistance to member program staff and allied
professionals on housing and economic justice initiatives.
Assist in writing grant proposals and sulimitting interim reports as required by
grantors.

Work with Program Director to secure additional funding for existing statewide
programs, and develop and implement new programs and special projects as funding
becomes available.

Develop and implement evaluation tools for housing and economic justice related
programming.

Attend statewide committee meetings that address issues of housing and economic
security.



Minimum Requirements: Bachelor s Degree or equivalent experience.

Preferred Skills:

•  Flexibility and ability to manage a variety of tasks independently.
•  Effective communication skills both written and verbal.

•  Strong work ethic.
•  Effective attention to detail with the ability to follow through.
•  Demonstrated understanding of and comrnitment to domestic and sexual violence

issues.

•  Experience with program evaluation.
•  Ability to problem-solve and think creatively about complex situations.

•  Experience with the Microsoft Office Suite.

Physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described below are
representative of those that must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of this
job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to
perform the essential functions:

o Must be physically and mentally capable of performing multiple tasks (such as phone
calls, computer work, attending meetings] under stressful situations and able to
consistently function well in a fast-paced environment,

o Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use
his/her wrist, elbow and shoulder,

o Must be able to communicate independently,
o Must be able to lift or move up to 20 pounds.

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work expected
for this position. They are not to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities,
duties, and skills required. All personnel may be required to perform duties outside of their
normal responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and employing
diverse staff. We strongly encourage people of diverse racial, gender, and ethnic identities and
abilities to apply.

For Human Resources Only

1 Job Cateqorv Manaoer

Exempt/Nonexempl Non Exempt

This is a part-time position 32 hours per week

Supervisor Program Director
Department(is) Programs

1 Last Revised October 2020



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Job Description: Program Director

s

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV) creates safe and
Just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking.

The above mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based
member programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to; 1) Influence public
policy on the local, state and national levels; 2) Ensure that quality services are'provided to victims; 3)
Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual violence,
domestic violence and stalking; 4) Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Job Objective and Summary: Provide leadership and oversight in the development and administration
of member services, training and technical assistance, statewide programs and other special projects of
the NHCADSV in line with its mission, strategic plan and community needs.

Essential Functions:

•  Responsible for the development, implementation, evaluation and direction of statewide programs
and projects of NHCADSV in response to victim, member program and community needs. Identify
emerging needs in the field and develop programming to aid in strengthening services.

•  Accomplish Program Department objectives by managing staff; planning and evaluating department
activities.

• Maintain staff by recruiting, sefecting, orienting, and training employees.
•  Develop personal growth'opportunities.
•  Accomplishes staff results by communicating job expectations, planning, monitoring, and

appraising job results.
•  Serve as key staff liaison to the NHCADSV member programs. This includes leadership role in

meetings and identifying arid facilitating training and technical assistance.
• Coordinate NHCADSV*s P'articipating Member Council, responding to both short-term and long-

term priorities of the Council's statewide work.
• Manage statewide traiiiing and technical assistwce activities of the NHCADSV for stakeholders.
•  Assist with grant writing in response to federal, state, and private funding opportunities.
•  Engage with key stakeholders on relevant program activities of the NHCADSV and its member

programs.

•  Serve on statewide committees and advisory boards to improve multidisciplinary responses to sexual
violence, domestic violence and stalking.

• Member ofthc NHCADSV Leadership Team.

Minimum Requirements: Demonstrated program planning and organizational development skills. At
least five years of rhanagemeni and supervisory experience in a dynamic and complex'organization.

Preferred Skills:

•  Skilled communicator with superior interpersonal, verbal and written skills, including experience
with crisis communications.



Creativity, professionalism, ability to communicate with diverse audiences, and system
collaboration experience.
Experience with domestic and sexual violence advocacy and prevention, and providing direct
services.

Experience in project management.and program leadership.
Commitment to social justice issues and an anti-oppression framework.
Proficiency with Microsoft Office Suite.^..

Desired Skills:

• High emotional intelligence with the ability to work across a variety of systems representing
diverse individuals and systems.

• Humble, knows when to ask for help and advice from others.
• A great sense of humor.
•  Tlie ability to work quickly and nimbly under pressure and in a fast-paced environment.
• Demonstrated understanding of and commitment to donriestic and sexual violence issues.

Physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those
that must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions:
• Must be physically and mentally capable of performing multiple tasks (such as phone calls,

computer work, attending meetings) under stressful situations and able to consistently function
well in a fast paced environment.

• Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use his/her wrist,
elbow and shoulder.

• Must be able to talk and hear.

• This position is located in Concord, NH. Occasional travel, primarily in state. .

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work expected for this
position. They are not to be construed as ̂  exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, and skills
required. All personnel may be required to perform duties outside of their normal responsibilities from
time to time, as needed.

The NH Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and employing diverse
staff. We strongly encourage people of diverse racial, gender, and ethnic identities and abilities to
apply.

For Human Resources Ooly

1 Job Cateeorv Director 1

Exempt/Nonexempt Exempt

1 This is a full time position Fill! time: 40 hours-oer week I

Supervisor
Provides Supervision to
Department(s)

Executive Director

5-10 Staff

Programs

1 Last Revised June 2020 ■1



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Job Description: Programs Coordinator

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just
communities through advocacy, prevention, and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual
violence, domestic violence, and stalking.

The above mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-
based member programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to; 1)
influence public policy on the local, state and national levels; 2) ensure that quality services are
provide to victims; 31 promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their
responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking; prevent violence and abuse^
before they occur.

Job Objective and Summary: Coordinate and provide support for the program efforts of the
NHCADSV member programs and the Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANEI Program.

These primary job functions will be performed at the Coalition's office in Concord. NH. The
employee must have access to reliable transportation to and from work. Some travel may be
requested throughout New Hampshire, as necessary.

Essential Functions:

General Programs Support:

•  Assist with the ongoing implementation of current NHCADSV programs and other
projects and initiatives.

•  Coordination of regular Participating Member Council IPMC) meetings including
meeting announcements, materials and recording minutes.

•  Coordinate and assist with committees/collaborations that involve current member

programs of NHCADSV.
•  Attend and represent NHCADSV at statewide meeting and committees.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner fSANEl Support:

•  Coordination of bi-monthly SANE Advisory Board (SAB) meetings including meeting
announcements, materials and recording minutes.

•  Coordinate and assist with the provision of statewide SANE trainings, and on-going
domestic and sexual violence trainings to member programs and allied professionals.

•  Assist with aspects of the application for providership in continuing education for nurses
and maintain documentation for providership status.

•  Assist with the development and implementation of a pediatric sexual abuse
preceptorship program to clinicaUy prepare pediatric trained SANEs.

•  Track and report on evidence collection kit data received.

Minimum Requirements: Bachelor's Degree or equivalent experience. Experience working to
address domestic and sexual violence strongly preferred.



Preferred Skills;

o Excellent organization skills, including the ability to follow through on projects and meet
deadlines.

o  Effective communication skills, both written and verbal,

o Ability to take direction, work independently and as part of a team, and be self-
motivated.

o Demonstrated understanding of and commitment to domestic and sexual violence
issues.

o  Proficient in Microsoft Office'and experience with MS Teams, Access, PowerPoint, and
PubTisher.

o Effective communicator and demonstrated experience with public speaking.

Physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described here are
representative of those that must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of this
job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform
the essential functions:

o Must be physically and mentally capable of perforrhing multiple tasks (such as phone
calls, computer work, attending meetings) under stressful situations and able to
consistently function well in a fast-paced environment,

o Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use his/her
wrist, elbow, and shoulder,

o Must be able to talk ancfhear.

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work expected
for this position. They are not to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties,
and skills required. All personnel may be required to perform duties outside of their normal
responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The NH Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and employing
diverse staff. We strongly encourage people of diverse racial, gender, and ethnic identities and
abilities to apply.

For Human-Resources Only

1 Job Cateaorv Coordinator -  1
Exempt/Nohexempt Non-Exempt

This is a full time-position. ■ 40 hours per week

Supervisor

.Departme'ntlsl

Program Director
Programs

Last Revised February 2021 1



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence Job Description: Public Affairs Coordinator

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (the Coalition) creates
safe and just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone
affected by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

The above mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-
based member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working together to: 11
Influence public policy oh the local, state and national levels; 21 Ensure that quality services are
provided to victims: 31 Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their
responses; to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking; Jij Prevent violence and abuse
before they occur.

Job Objective and Sumnnary: Provide administrative support and coordination
to the Public Affairs Department, which includes public policy,
communications and development.

»  . ■

These primaryjob functions will be performed at the Coalition's office in Concord. NH. The
employee must have access to reliable transportation to and from work. Occasional travel may
be required throughout New Hampshire as necessar7. Flexible schedule, some evenings and
weekends may be required.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

COMMUNICATIONS

4

•  Update Coalition website, generate monthly newsletters, maintain media and
grassroots contact databases

•  Create and distribute Coalition materials

•  Assist with special events and awareness campaigns

PUBLIC POLICY

•  Assist with the tracking of relevant legislation and the coordination of materials for
legislative hearings

•  Schedule legislative meetings and coordinate legislative trainings

•  Assist with the recruiting and nianagement of the Coalition's legislative volunteer
network including the legislative internship program

DEVELOPMENT

•  Maintain donor database

•  Coordinate direct appeals

•  Assist with all fundraising initiatives

•  Coordinate timely acknowledgements to donors including letters and phone calls

Perform other duties as assigned



Minimum Requirements:

Bachelor's Degree or equivalent experience. Administrative and/or development experience in a
non-profit setting preferred

Preferred Skills:

o Proficient in Microsoft Office suite

o Working'knowledge of databases
0 Competent with electronic communication
o Effective communication' skills, b'oth written and verbal

o Detail oriented

o Excellent organizational skills, including the ability to follow through on projects
o Ability to take direction, work independently and as part of a team, and be self-

motivated

o Flexibility, a sense of humor, and the ability to work quickly and nimbly under pressure
and in a fast-paced environment

o An understanding of domestic and sexual violence issues, and multi-disciplinary
approaches preferred

Desired Skills:

' o A strong work ethic, essential for this demanding environment that continually strives for
excellence

o A good sense of humor
b A passion for our mission that invigorates and excites everyone with whom you connect

• o Experience with Giftworks or Frontstream or Constant Contact
o Demonstrated understanding of and commitment to domestic and sexual violence issues

Physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described here are
representative of those that must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of this
job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to -
perform the essential functions:

o Must be physically and mentally capable of performing multiple tasks Isuch as phone
calls, computer work, attending meetings) under stressful situations and able to
consistently function well in a fast paced environment,

o Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use his/her
wrist, elbovv and shoulder,

o Must be able to talk and hear.

o Ability to bend, lift and carry equipment and other materials (up to 30 pounds.)

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work expected for
this position. They are not to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, and
skills required. All personnel may be required to perform duties outside of their normal
responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The NH Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and employing
diverse staff. We strongly encourage people of diverse racial, gender, and ethnic identities and
abilities to apply.



For Human Resources Only

1 Job Cateaorv ■ Coordinator
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This is a part time position Full time; -40 hours per week

Supervisor
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Job Description: Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program Director

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV)
creates safe and just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of
anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Job Objective and Summary: The primary focus of this position is to coordinate the
NH Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program in conjunction with the SANE
Advisory Board. The SANE Director will implement and maintain the following

1. Recruitment and training of Sexual Assault Nurse Examiners across the state.

2. Provide technical ̂ sistance on proper medical responses to victims.

3. Continued development, updating and implementation of on e-leaming platform
for delivery of SANE training staitewide.

4. Continued development and delivery of continuing education credit (contact hours)
for nurses practicing as SANEs.

5. Collaboration with the statewide SART Coordinator to encourage SANE
participation on local SART teams.

6. Training for other medical and multidisciplinary professionals responsible for
responding to sexual assault and domestic violence victims.

Essential Functions:

■  Complete the application and renewal for providership in continuing education for
nurses.

■ Maintain the necessary files for continued providership status.
■  Develop and deliver SANE trainings via e-leaming in a Learning Management System
(LMS) (in combination with live training components) to increase the availability of
SANEs throughout the state, utilizing the current International Association of
Forensic Nursing Education Guidelines

■ Develop and deliver regular e-leaming/live continuing education to trained SANEs
•  Develop and implement a pediatric sexual abuse preceptorship program in

collaboration with the Granite State Children's Alliance to clinically prepare
pediatric trained SANEs statewide

•  Chair and work with NH SANE Advisory Board to improve and expand the NH SANE
Program, assisting in the development of SANE programs in every hospital in the state

•  Collaborate with the NH SART Coordinator on efforts to develop statewide SART
teams which include SANE nurses

■  Provide professional training to other disciplines, as requested and necessary, to
strengthen comprehensive, coordinated care for sexual assault victims



*  Supervise the SANE Program Administrative Assistant, including oversight and
responsibility for programmatic data collection

"  Organize and provide ongoing technical assistance to trained SANEs
•  Provide technical assistance to victim services, law enforcement, health care and

prosecution agencies on proper responses to sexual and domestic violence victims and
forensic exams

■  Develop resources, as needed, to assist medical providers in implementing best
practices in serving sexual'assault victims

■  Provide ongoing contact and support to professional health associations and groups in
the development of responses to domestic and sexual violence as health care issues

Minimum Requirements: Must be a Registered Nurse licensed and in good standing.

Experience with training and facilitation is necessary. National Board Certification as a
SANE-A and SANE-F. Bachelor of Science in Nursing preferred.

Preferred Skills: Strong organizational skills and health care experience. Ability to
effectively manage projects. Demonstrated excellent written and oral communication
skills. Demonstrated skills in e-leaming management. Creativity and professionalism.
Health care and other systems collaboration experience. Strong interpersonal and
networking abilities.

physical and psychological demands: The physical demands described here are
representative of those that must be met to successfully perform the essential functions of
this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the essential functions.

• Must be physically and mentally capable of performing multiple tasks (such as
phone calls, computer work, attending meetings), and able to consistently function
well in a fast-paced environment.

• Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use
his/her wrist, elbow and shoulder.

• Must be able to talk and hear.

• This position is located in Concord, NH, but may be maintained virtually as well.
Residency in New Hampshire required. Frequent travel will be required,
including statewide and national travel.

Disclaimer

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work
expected for this position. They are not to be construed as an exhaustive list of all
responsibilities, duties, and.skills required. All personnel may be required to perform
duties outside of their normal responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The NH Coalition is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is committed to hiring and
employing diverse staff. We strongly encourage people of diverse racial, gender, and ethnic
identities and abilities to apply. .



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Job Description: Training and Resources Specialist

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities through
advocacy, prevention, and empowerrnent of ariypne affected by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.
The above mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which Includes 12 independent community>based member

programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to: 1) influence public policy on the local, state and
national levels; 2) ensure that quality services are provided to victims; 3} promote the accountability of societal systems

and communities for their responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking; 4) prevent violence and abuse
before they occur.

Job Objective and Summary: Provide statewide trainings, resources, technical assistance, and support for the NHCADSV

member programs and aliied professionals.

These primary job functions wiii be performed at the Coalition's office in Concord, NH as well as remotely. The

employee must have access to reliable transportation to and from work. Frequent travel may be required throughout
New Hampshire as necessary.

Essential Functions:

o Coordinate and assist with the ongoing implementation of current NHCADSV programs including the Family
Violence Prevention Specialist Program, Trauma-Informed Services, and other projects and initiatives,

o Develop, coordinate, and provide training for the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program, the Family
Violence Prevention Specialist program, and other education opportunities,

o Develop and provide statewide'training on domestic and sexuai violence to NHCADSV member programs,
and allied professionals including but not limited to the Depai^ment of Health and Human Services, law
enforcement, and mental health and substance abuse providers,

o Develop and maintain online resources and training modules to support staff and volunteer trainings

facilitated by member programs,
o Act as the primary liaison to DCYF related to the administration of the Family Violence Prevention Services

Program. Coordinate and facilitate regular cohort meetings with Family Violence Prevention Specialists and
their'Supervisors from DCYF and.NHCADSV member programs;

o Coordinate and facilitate regular cohort meetings with the Direct Service Coordinators at the NHCADSV
member programs

o  Research, analyze and synthesize emerging Issues in the field of domestic and sexual violence and provide
technical assistance to member programs and allied professionals. This task Is performed from a
perspective of utilizing best practices and developing policies and procedures consistent with NHCADSV
Program Standards.

o Maintain state of the art knowledge of best praaices, policies, and procedures on issues relevant to the
mission of NHCADSV.

o Coordinate, create, and disseminate resources to member programs, including technical assistance bulletins
and training and professional development opportunities newsletters,

o  Coordinate and assist with committee;s/collaboratibns that involve current member programs of NHCADSV.
o Attend and represent NHCADSV at statewide meetings and committees. Representation includes assisting in

development or revisions to policies and procedures necessary to meet the heeds of victims/survivors,
o  Provide ongoing updates and Information sharing among Coalition staff/departments,
o Coordinate and update resources and content for the NHCADSV website and social media on an ongoing

basis.

o Maintain data of trainings delivered and online modules accessed,
o Assist In writing grant applications and grant reports.

Minimum Requirements:



0  Bachelor's Degree or equivalent experience,
o  Experience with curriculum and program development.

o  Training facilitation and public speaking experience with both small and large groups,
o Demonstrated understanding of and commitment to domestic and sexual violence Issues.

Preferred Skills;

o  Excellent organization skills, including the ability to follow through on projects and meet deadlines,
o  Effective communication skills, both written and verbal, and demonstrate experience with training facilitation

and public speaking.

o Substantial experience training on jssues of domestic and sexual violence. Including providing training to diverse
professionals.

o Ability to take direction, work Independently and as part of a team, and beself-motivated.

o Ability to engage an audience in a formal training.

o  Proficient in Microsoft Ofhce and experience with MS Teams, Access, PowerPoint, and Publisher,

o  Proficient in online meeting and training platforms such as Zoom, Moodle and Cisco Webex.

o  Proficient in basic design, email marketing and video editing platforms such as Canvas. Constant Contact,
YouTube, and Vimeo.

Physical and psychological demands:

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met to successfully perform the essential

functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the

essential functions:

o Must be physically and mentally capabfe of performing multiple tasks (such as phone calls, computer work,
attending meetings) under stressful situations and able to consistently function well In a fast-paced

environment.

0 Must be capable of using a visual display terminal with keyboard, repetitively use his/her wrist, elbow, and
shoulder,

o Must be able to talk and hear.

DlKlaimer

The above statements are Intended to describe the general nature and level of work expected for this position. They are
not to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, and skills required. All personnel may be required
to perform duties outside of their normal responsibilities from time to time, as needed.

The NH Coalition Is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Is committed to hiring and employing diverse staff. We strongly

encourage people of diverse racial; gender, and ethnic Identities and abilities to apply.
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